Montréal

Toronto

Ottawa

Calgary

New York

Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP File No. 82-3764

1000 de La Gauchetiére Street West
Suite 2100
Montréal, Québec, Canada H3B 4wj5

pre | g—
W
September 14,2006 S\_\P PL oo

fparadis@osler.com
Our Matter Number: 1034079

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Division of Corporation Finance

Judiciary Plaza

450 Fifth Street NW

Washington, DC 20549

Attention: Office of International Corporate Finance

Dear Sirs/Mesdames:

Re: National Bank of Canada (the “Bank”)
Exemption pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)

On behalf of the Bank, we hereby submit pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii) copies of documents
that the Bank has made public or has distributed to its security holders since July 28, 2006. For
your convenience, a list of these documents is provided in the attached Schedule A.

In accordance with Rule 12g3-2(b)(4), all information and documents included herewith are
being furnished under Rule 12g3-2(b)(1) with the understanding that such information and
documents will not be deemed to be “filed” with the Commission or otherwise subject to the
liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and that neither this letter nor the furnishing of
such information and documents shall constitute an admission for any purpose that the Bank is
subject to the Exchange Act.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter by stamping the enclosed receipt copy and retuming it
in the enclosed pre-paid courier envelope.

If you have any questions or comments regarding this letter, feel free to contact the undersigned
at the coordinates noted in the heading.

Yours very truly, PROGESSEU
Joo o bs IR AqL

ncois Paradis : ﬂﬁ\?m%?&

/sc

Encls.

c: Ms. Mary Cascio (without encls.)
Ms. Mélanie Bemier (with encls.)

MONTREAL:776968.3

osler.com




File No. 82-3764

OSLER

SCHEDULE A
September 14, 2006

NATIONAL BANK OF CANADA
INDEX OF DOCUMENTS FURNISHED PURSUANT TO RULE 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii)
Note: The documents enclosed herewith are presented in reverse chronological order according

to the categories of disclosure requirements set forth in Schedule A attached to our letter
dated May 8, 2006.

DATE OF FILING
SCHEDULE “A”
DOCUMENT TYPE SEDAR REFERENCE
NUMBER

Preliminary Short Form Base Shelf Prospectus

L dated September 6, 2006 September 7, 2006 4.3
MRRS Decision Document (Preliminary) dated

- . ;
7. September 7, 2006 acknowledging Receipt for September 7, 2006 45

the Preliminary Short Form Prospectus dated
September 6, 2006

News Release dated August 31, 2006
3. | Announcing Results for the Third Quarter ended August 31,2006 2.1
July 31, 2006

Interim Financial Statements for the Third

Quarter ended July 31, 2006 August 31,2006 2.1

Certification of Interim Filings by the President
5. | and Chief Executive Officer dated August 29, August 31, 2006 23
2006 for the Third Quarter ended July 31, 2006

Certification of Interim Filings by the Senior
6 Vice-President Finance, Technology and

Corporate Affairs dated August 29, 2006 for the August 31,2006 23
Third Quarter ended July 31, 2006
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

7 Financial Condition and Operating Results dated August 31,2006 29

August 31,2006 for the Third Quarter ended July
31,2006

MONTREAL:776968.3




Base Shelf Prospectus
No securities regulatory autherity has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise.

{ copy of this preliminary short torm base shelf prospectus has been filed with the securities regudarory auihoritics in each of the provinces of Carada but has not
verhecome tinal for the purpose of the sale of securities. Inforination contained i this preliminary shoit form base shelt prospecius may nor he complere and iny
have o he amended. The secnrities may nor be sold untib a veceipr for the short form base shelf prospecius is obiained front the secnriries regulainry awthorities.

This short form base sholf prospectus hay been filed under legistation in all provinces of Canada that perinits ceriain information about these securities o he
dueternined after this prospectus hos beconte finad and that permits the omission from this praspectus of that iniormation. The legislation requires the delivein to
purchasers of a prospectus sugplement containing this omited information within a specified period of tme after agreeing to purchase any of these securitics.

Information has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus from documents filed with securities commissions or simil thorities in Canada. Copies
of the documents incorporated herein by reference may be obtained on request without charge from the Corporate Secretary. National Bank of Canada, National
Bank Tower, 600 De La Gauchetiére Street West, Montréal, Québec. H3B 412, (514) 394-6081 and are also available electronically at www sedar.com. For the
purpose of the Province of Québec, this simplified prospectus contains information to be completed by consulting the permanent information record. 4 copy of the
permanent information record may be obtained from the Corporate Secretary of the Bank at the above-mentioned address and telephone number and is also
available electronically at wiww,sedar.com.

This short form shelf prospectus constitutes a public offering of these securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for sale and therein
only by persons permitted to seil such securities. The securities 1o be issued hereunder have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended and, subject to certain exceptions, may not be offered. sold or delivered, directly or indirectly. in the United States of America or for the
account or benefit of U.S. persons. See "Plan of Distribution”.

PRELIMINARY SHORT FORM BASE SHELF PROSPECTUS
NEW ISSUE September 6, 2006

NATIONAL BANK OF CANADA

$2,500,000,000

Medium Term Notes
(subordinated indebtedness)

Medium Term Notes which are subordinated indebtedness of National Bank of Canada (the "Bank”) due more tharro/ne ear from
the date of issue (the "Notes") may be offered for sale under this prospectus at various times until October e, 2008440 aggregate
principal amount of up t0 $2.5 billion (or the equivalent in other currencies or currency units) calculated on the basis of the
principal amount of Notes issued, in the case of interest bearing Notes, or on the basis of the gross proceeds received by the Bank,
in the case of non-interest bearing Notes or Notes bearing interest at a rate that at the time of issuance is below market rates. Notes
may be redeemed at the option of the Bank, in whole or in part, prior to their maturity date.

Other specific terms of any offering of the Notes will be described, and all shelf information not included in this short form base
shelf prospectus will be contained, in one or more pricing supplements that will be delivered together with this prospectus to
prospective purchasers of Notes.

RATES ON APPLICATION

The Notes will be offered separately by one or more of National Bank Financial Inc., BMO Nesbitt Bumns Inc., Casgrain &
Company Limited, CIBC World Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (Canada) Inc., Laurentian Bank Securities Inc., Merrill Lynch
Canada Inc., JP Morgan Securities Canada [nc., RBC Capital Markets, Scotia Capital Inc.and TD Securities Inc. and other dealers
that may be appointed fromn time to time (collectively, the "Dealers”). Under a dealer agreement dated September o, 2006 between
the Bank and the Dealers, the Notes may be purchased at various times by any of the Dealers, as agent, underwriter or principal, at
prices and commissions to be agreed upon, for resale to the public at prices to be negotiated with purchasers. Resale prices may
vary during the distribution period and between purchasers. The Bank may also offer the Notes to purchasers directly, pursuant to
applicable registration exemptions, at prices and terms to be negotiated. See "Plan of Distribution”.

The offerings are subject to approval of certain legal matters on behalf of the Bank by McCarthy Tétrault LLP and on behalf of the
Dealers by Fasken Martireau DuMoulin LLP.



There is no market through which these securities may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell securities
purchased under this prospectus. This may affect the pricing of the securities in the secondary market, the transparency
and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the securities and the extent of issuer regulation — See “Risk Factors”.

The Notes will be direct unsecured obligations of the Bank constituting subordinated indebtedness for the purposes of the
Bank Act (Canada) (the " Bank Act') and will not constitute deposits that are insured under the Canada Deposit Insurance
Corporation Act.

In the event of the insolvency or winding-up of the Bank, the Notes will rank equally and rateably with the Bank's other
subordinated indebtedness and will be subordinate in right of payment to the prior payment in full of the deposit liabilities
of the Bank and all other liabilities of the Bank except those which, by their terms, rank in right of payment equally with
or subordinate to the Notes. See ""Description of the Notes — Subordination".

National Bank Financial Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. As a result, the Bank is a “related issuer” of
National Bank Financial Inc. under applicable securities legislation. See '"Plan of Distribution".
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ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

In the opinion of McCarthy Tétrault LLP, counsel for the Bank, and Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP, counsel for the
Dealers, unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement, the Notes would, if issued on the date of this prospectus, be qualified
investments under the /ncome Tax Act (Canada) for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement
income funds, registered education savings plans and deferred profit sharing plans (other than trusts governed by deferred profit
sharing plans to which contributions are made by the Bank, or a corporation with which the Bank does not deal at arm's length
within the meaning of the /ncome Tax Act (Canada)).

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, including those relating to the Bank’s
strategies and other statements that are predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or that include
words such as “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “plans®, “believes”, “estimates” or similar expressions, are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of securities laws. Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, the information
conceming possible or assumed future results of operations of the Bank. These statements are not historical facts but instead

represent only the Bank’s expectations, estimates and projections regarding future events.

By their very nature, forward looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, and
risks exist that predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward looking statements will be not achieved. Readers are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on these statements as a number of important factors could cause results to differ materially from the
beliefs, plans, objectives, expectations, anticipations, estimates and intentions expressed in such forward-looking statements.
Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations include, but are not limited to: the strength of the
Canadian economy in general and the strength of the local economies within Canada in which the Bank conducts operations; the
strength of the economies of other nations in which the Bank conducts significant operations; the effects of changes in monetary



and fiscal policy, including changes in interest rate policies of the Bank of Canada and the Board of Govemnors of the Federal
Reserve System in the United States; changes in trade policy; the effects of competition in the markets in which the Bank
operates; inflation; capiral market and currency market fluctuations; the timely development and introduction of new products and
services in respective markets; the impact of changes in the laws and regulations regulating financial services (including banking,
insurance and securities); changes in tax laws; technological changes; unexpected judicial or regulatory proceedings; unexpected
changes in consumer spznding and saving habits; the possible impact on the Bank's businesses of international conflicts and other
developments including those relating to the war or terrorism; and the Bank's anticipation of and success in managing the risks
implied by the foregoing. See “Risk Factors™. The foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive, When relying on the
Bank’s forward-looking statements to make decisions, investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and
otheruncertainties and potentials events. The Bank does not undertake to update any forward-looking statement, whether written
or oral, that may be macle from time to time by or on behalf of the Bank unless required by applicable laws.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents of the Bank, filed with the Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) (the
"Superintendent”) and the securities regulatory authorities in each of the provinces of Canada, are incorporated by reference into,
and form an integral part of, this prospectus:

(a) the Annual Information Form of the Bank dated January 18, 2006;

(b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2005, which include
comparative audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended October 31,2004, together with the
Auditors’ report thereon and the Management's Discussion and Analysis of the financial conditions and results of
operations as contained in the Bank's Annual Report for the year ended October 31, 2005;

(c) the Management Proxy Circular dated January 18, 2006 in connection with the Bank's annual meeting of shareholders
held on March 8, 2006;

(d) the Third Quarterly Report to shareholders of the Bank for the quarter ended July 31, 2006, which includes unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements for the quarters ended July 31, 2006 and 20035 (the “2006 Third Quarter
Report”);

(e) the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial conditions and results of operations contained in the 2006
Third Quarter Report at pages 4 to 9; and

(f) the Material Change Report dated July 27, 2006 relating to the appointment of Mr. Louis Vachon as Chief Operating
Officer of the Bank.

Any documents of the type referred to in the preceding paragraph and any unaudited interim financial statements,
any material change reports (excluding confidential material change reports), any business acquisition reports and any
other disclosure documents filed pursuant to an undertaking to a provincial or territories securities regulatory authority,
any information circulars, filed by the Bank with a securities regulatory authority in Canada after the date of this
prospectus and prior to the completion or withdrawal of the offering, will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into
this prospectus.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus
or contained in this prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded, for purposes of this prospectus, to the extent
that a statement contained in this prospectus or in any other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be
incorporated by reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes such statement. The modifying or superseding
statement need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in
the document that it modifies or supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement will not be deemed an
admission for any purposes that the modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an
untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary
to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. Any statement so modified or
superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.



Upon a new annual information form or new annual consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and
analysis accompanying such financial statements being filed by the Bank with, and where required, accepted by, the applicable
securities regulatory authorities during the currency of this prospectus, the previous annual information form, the previous annual
consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis accompanying such financial statements, all interim
consolidated financial statements and any management's discussion and analysis accompanying such financial statements, material
change reports and information circulars filed prior to the commencement of the Bank's financial year with respect to which the
new annual information form is filed will be deemed no longer to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus for purposes of
future offers and sales of Notes hereunder.

A pricing supplement containing the specific terms of any offered Notes, updated disclosure eamings coverage ratios, if
applicable, and other information in relation to such offered Notes will be delivered to purchasers of such offered Notes together
with this prospectus and will be deemed to be incorporated into this prospectus as of the date of such pricing supplement, but only
for purposes of the offering of such offered Notes.

Investors should rely only on information contained or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. The Bank has not, and
the Dealers have not, authorized any other person to provide investors with different information. If anyone provides investors
with different or inconsistent information, investors should not rely on it. The Bank is not, and the Dealers are not, making an
offer to sell these Notes in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of the Notes is not permitted.

Updated earnings coverage ratios will be filed quarterly with the applicable securities regulatory authorities, either as
prospectus supplements or as exhibits to the Bank's unaudited interim and audited annual consolidated financial statements, and
will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

In this prospectus, unless otherwise specified, all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars.

RATINGS

Unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement, the following are the provisional ratings for the Notes by the indicated
rating organization.

Rating Organization
"A-" e Standard & Poor's Corporation, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies ("Standard & Poor's")
"A" Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited ("DBRS")
"A2" e Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's")

Credit ratings are intended to provide investors with an independent measure of credit quality of an issue of securities and
are indicators of the likelihood of the payment capacity and willingness of a company to meet its financial commitment on an
obligation in accordance with the terms of the obligation. The "A" rating assigned to the Notes is the third highest rating of
Standard & Poor's ten rating categories for long term debt obligations, which range from AAA to D, the third highest of DBRS's
nine rating categories for long term debt obligations, which range from AAA to C and the third highest of Moody's nine rating
categories for long term debt obligations which range from AAA to C. "+" and "-" designations in the case of Standard & Poor’s,
"(low)" and "(high)" designations in the case of DBRS and "1" to "3" designations in the case of Moody's indicate relative strength
within the respective rating categories. Each rating organization has several categories of long-term debt obligations for which it
will assign a rating. Prospective purchasers of the notes should consult the rating organization with respect to the interpretation
and implications of the foregoing provisional ratings.

The foregoing ratings should not be construed as a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Notes. The credit ratings do not
address market price or suitability for a particular investor. The credit ratings assigned to the Notes may not reflect the potential
impact of all risks on the value of the Notes. In addition, real or anticipated changes in the credit ratings assigned to the Notes will
generally affect the market value of the Notes. There is no assurance that any rating will remain in effect for any given period of
time or that any rating will not be revised or withdrawn entirely by a rating organization in the future if, in its judgment,
circumstances so warrant,



NATIONAL BANK OF CANADA

The Bank, a chartered bank subject to the provisions of the Bank Act, was formed through a series of amalgamations and its
roots date back to 1859 with the founding of Banque Nationale in Québec City. The Bank's head office and registered office are
located at the National Bank Tower, 600 De La Gauchetire Street West, 4® Floor, Montréal, Québec, H3B 4L.2.

Subsidiaries

A list of the principal subsidiaries directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the Bank as at October 31, 2005 is included
in the Bank’s Annual Report for the year ended October 31, 2005.

Business of the Bank

The Bank maintains offices and provides services in each of the Canadian provinces. It offers a full range of financial
services to individuals, commercial enterprises, financial institutions and governments both in Canada and abroad.

Additional information with respect to the Bank's businesses is included in the Bank's Annual Report for the year ended
October 31, 2005.

Recent Developmenis

The Bank announced, on July 27, the appointment of Louis Vachon as Chief Operating Officer effective as of August 1,
2006.

DESCRIPTION OF NOTES

The following description of the Notes and of the trust indenture dated as of September 30, 1999, as supplemented from
time to time, including by supplemental indentures to be entered into with respect to each tranche of Notes (the "Trust Indenture”)
between the Bank and National Bank Trust Inc., which was replaced by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as trustee (the
"Trustee"), is a summary of certain of their material attributes and characteristics, which does not purport to be complete and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Trust Indenture. Capitalized terms which are not defined have the meanings attributed
to them in the Trust Indenture or Notes, as the case may be.

The following description of the Notes will apply to each Note unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement.
General ‘

The Notes may be issued at various times in different series of debt securities under the Trust Indenture, or may be issued
under one or more other trust indentures or without a trust indenture. In each case, the terms and conditions attaching to such
Notes will be set out in the applicable trust indenture, if any, and in the applicable pricing supplement.

All debt securities, including the Notes, issued or to be issued under the Trust Indenture will be direct unsecured obligations
of the Bank constituting subordinated indebtedness for the purposes of the Bank Act, ranking equally and rateably with all other
subordinated indebtedness of the Bank from time to time issued and outstanding under the Trust Indenture and all other
subordinated indebtedness of the Bank. See "Description of Notes — Subordination” below. In the event of the insolvency or
winding-up of the Bank, the subordinated indebtedness of the Bank, including the Notes, will be subordinate in right of payment
to the prior payment in full of the deposit liabilities of the Bank and all other liabilities of the Bank except those which, by their
terms, rank in right of payment equally with or are subordinate to such subordinated indebtedness.

The Notes will not constitute deposits that are insured under the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act.

The following summaries of certain provisions of the Trust Indenture do not purport to be complete and are qualified in
their entirety by reference to all the provisions of the Trust Indenture, including the definitions therein of certain terms. Wherever
particular provisions or defined terms of the Trust Indenture are referred to, such provisions or defined terms are incorporated into
this prospectus by reference.

The Trust Indenture does not limit the amount of subordinated indebtedness that may be issued thereunder. Notes may be
issued from time to time in one or more series and may be denominated and payable in foreign currencies or units of account



defined in terms of the currencies of two or more countries. Special federal income tax considerations applicable to any offered
Notes so denominated may be described in the applicable pricing supplement. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable pricing
supplement, the Trust Indenture does not limit the principal amount of any series of Notes which may be issued.

A pricing supplement will describe the terms of any series of Notes being offered thereby, including: (i) the specific
designation, aggregate principal amount and authorized denominations of such Notes; (ii) the currency or currency unit for which
the Notes may be purchased and the currency or currency unit in which the principal and any interest is payable (in either case, if
other than Canadian dollars); (iii) the percentage of the principal amount at which such Notes will be issued; (iv) the date or dates
on which such Notes will mature; (v) the rate or rates per annum at which such Notes will bear interest (if any), or the method of
determination of such rates (if any); (vi) the dates on which such interest will be payable and the record dates for such payments;
(vii) any redemption terrn or terms under which such Notes may be cancelled; (viii) whether such Notes are to be issued in fully
registered form, registered form, bearer form or as global securities and the basis of exchange, transfer and ownership thereof;
(ix) any exchange or conversion terms; and (x) any other specific terms.

A pricing supplement may also describe certain income tax considerations that may apply to any offered Notes.

The Bank may set forth in a pricing supplement other terms which are not within the options and parameters set forth in this
prospectus.

Form, Denomination, Transfer

Notes issued under the Trust Indenture may be issuable solely in fully registered form without coupons ("fully registered
securities"), solely in a form registered as to principal only with coupons attached ("registered securities"), solely in bearer form,
with or without coupons attached ( "bearer securities ") or in any combination of the foregoing. The denomination of any Notes will
be as set out in the pricing supplement. If a supplemental indenture relating to a series of Notes so provides, Notes may be issued,
permanently or temporarily, as global securities.

Except with respect to global securities, Notes may be exchanged for Notes of any other authorized denomination, any such
exchange to be for an equivalent aggregate principal amount of Notes of the same series, carrying the same rate of interest and
same redemption and other provisions as the Notes being exchanged. Subject to the restrictions set forth in the Trust Indenture,
exchanges of Notes of any series or transfers of any fully registered securities or registered securities may be made at the principal
office of the Trustee in Montréal or at such other place or places, if any, where the Trustee, or such other registrar or agent as the
Bank may appoint as may be specified in a pricing supplement or as the Bank may designate with the approval of the Trustee,
maintains a register for the Notes pursuant to the Trust Indenture. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement,
the Trustee will be the registrar and transfer agent for the Notes issued under the Trust Indenture. A service charge may be made
for any transfer or exchange of Notes. The Bank will also require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other
governmental charge.

Notes issued under the Trust Indenture with coupons attached will be negotiable and title thereto will pass by delivery
unless they are registered securities. If Notes with coupons attached are issued as registered securities, the coupons when detached
will continue to be payable to bearer and title to detached coupons will pass by delivery.

The Notes will be issued in fully registered form in minimum denominations of $1,000 unless otherwise specified in a
pricing supplement. Notes may also be denominated in non-Canadian currencies, if so specified in a pricing supplement.

Unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement, the Notes will be issued in fully registered book-entry form represented
by one or more fully registered global securities (the "Global Notes") deposited with, or on behalf of, The Canadian Depository
for Securities Limited ("CDS") and registered in the name of CDS or its nominee. Interests in the Global Notes will be shown on,
and transfers will be effected only through, records maintained by CDS (with respect to its participants) and Dealers or other
registered dealers who are participants in CDS (each, a "CDS Participant") (with respect to other persons having an interest (the
"Beneficial Owners")) and with CDS Participants (with respect to Beneficial Owners). Holders who desire to purchase, sell or
otherwise transfer ownership of or other interests in the Notes may do so only through CDS Participants. On the date of closing,
the Trustee will cause the Notes to be delivered to CDS and registered in the name of its nominee. All Notes bearing interest at the
same rate or pursuant to the same formula and having the same date of issue, redemption provisions, repayment provisions and
stated maturity date will be evidenced by a single book-entry only certificate. Registration of interests in and transfers of the Notes
will be made only through the depository services of CDS.




Except as described below, a Beneficial Owner will not be entitled to a certificate or other instrument from the Trustee or
CDS evidencing that purchaser's interest therein, and such purchaser will not be shown on the records maintained by CDS, except
through a CDS Participant. Such purchaser will receive a confirmation of purchase from the Dealer from whom Notes are
purchased in accordance with the practices and procedures of that Dealer. The practices of Dealers may vary, but generally
customer confirmations are issued promptly after execution of a customer order.

The ability of a holder to pledge a Note or otherwise take action with respect to such holder's interest in a Note (other than
through a CDS Participant) may be limited due to the lack of a physical certificate.

Neither the Bank nor the Dealers will assume any liability for: (a) any aspect of the records relating to the beneficial
ownership of the Notes held by CDS or the payments relating thereto; (b) maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records
relating to the Notes; or (c) any advice or representation made by or with respect to CDS, including those contained in this
prospectus, and relating to the rules goveming CDS or any action to be taken by CDS or at the direction of a CDS Participant. The
rules governing CDS provide that it acts as the agent and depository for CDS Participants. As a result, such CDS Participant must
look solely to CDS and Beneficial Owners must look solely to CDS Participants for the payment of the principal and interest or
premium, or any other amounts, if any, on the Notes paid by or on behalf of the Bank to CDS.

The Notes will be issued to Beneficial Owners in fully registered and certificated form (the "Note Certificates”) only if:
(i) required by applicable law; (ii) the book-entry system ceases to exist; (iii) the Bank or CDS advises the Trustee that CDS is no
longer willing or able to properly discharge its responsibilities as depository with respect to the Notes and the Bank is unable to
locate a qualified successor; (iv) the Bank, at its option, decides to terminate its present arrangements with CDS; or (v) after the
occurrence of an event of default, CDS Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners, representing, in the aggregate, more
than 50 % of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding, advise CDS in writing that the continuation of a book-
entry system through CD'S is no longer in their best interest. Upon the occurrence of any of these events, the Trustee must notify
CDS, for and on behalf of CDS Participants and Beneficial Owners, of the availability through CDS of Note Certificates. Upon
surrender by CDS of the certificates representing the Notes and receipt of instructions from CDS for the new registrations, the
Trustee will deliver the Notes in the form of Note Certificates and thereafter the Bank will recognize the holders of such Note
Certificates as Noteholders under the Trust Indenture.

Payments and Notices

While the book-eniry system is in effect, payments of principal, redemption price, if any, and interest, as applicable, on the
Notes will be made by the Bank to CDS, or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered holder of the Notes and the Bank
understands that such payments will be credited by CDS or its nominee in the appropriate amounts to the relevant CDS
Participants. Payments tc holders of the Notes of amounts so credited will be the responsibility of the CDS Participants.

As long as CDS or its nominee is the registered holder of the Notes, CDS or its nominee, as the case may be, will be
considered the sole owner of the Notes for the purposes of receiving notices or payments on the Notes. In such circumstances, the
responsibility and liability of the Bank in respect of notices or payments on the Notes is limited to giving or making payment of
any principal, redemption price, if any, and interest due on the Notes to CDS or its nominee.

Each holder must rely on the procedures of CDS and, if such holder is not a CDS Participant, on the procedures of the CDS
Participant through whick such holder owns its interest, to exercise any rights with respect to the Notes. The Bank understands
that under existing policies of CDS and industry practices, if the Bank requests any action of holders or if a holder desires to give
any notice or take any action which a registered holder is entitled to give or take with respect to the Notes, CDS would authorize
the CDS Participant acting on behalf of the holder to give such notice or to take such action, in accordance with the procedures
established by CDS or agreed to from time to time by the Bank, the Trustee and CDS. Any holder that is not a CDS Participant
must rely on the contractual arrangement or other arangement it has directly, or indirectly through its financial intermediary, with
its CDS Participant to give such notice or take such action.

If Note Certificates are issued, interest will be paid by cheque drawn on the Bank and sent by prepaid mail to the registered
holder or by such other means as may become customary for the payment of interest and the principal of the Notes and the interest
due at maturity will be paid upon surrender thereof at any branch of the Bank in Canada.



Interest

The Notes will be issued as floating rate Notes or fixed rate Notes, or a combination of both, and at an interest rate all as
specified in a pricing supplement, or they may be issued as index linked Notes.

Each fixed rate Note will bear interest from the later of the date of such Note and the last interest payment date to which
interest has been paid or made available for payment on such Note provided that, in respect of the first interest payment date after
the issuance thereof, each fixed rate Note will bear interest from the date of such Note.

Interest on each fixed rate Note will be payable on such dates as are specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Interest
payments on each interest payment date for fixed rate Notes will include interest accrued to, but excluding, such interest payment
date.

Unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement, floating rate interest for each quarterly interest period will be calculated
on the basis of the actual number of days in the period, divided by 365, or 366 in a leap year.

If any interest payment date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a business day, payment will be postponed until the
next succeeding business day (without any additional interest or other payment in respect of the delay).

A "business day" means a day on which banks are open for business in Toronto and Montréal and which is not a Saturday or
Sunday.

Events of Default

The Trust Indenture provides that an event of default in respect of the Notes will occur only if the Bank becomes insolvent
or bankrupt or subject to the provisions of the Winding-Up and Restructuring Act (Canada), if the Bank is subject to liquidation
either voluntarily or under an order of a court of competent jurisdiction, or if the Bank otherwise acknowledges its insolvency (in
each case, an "Event of Default"). However, a tesolution or order for winding-up the Bank, with a view to its amalgamation,
consolidation, merger, restructuring or reorganization with another bank or the transfer of its assets as an entirety to such other
bank, as described under "Description of Notes — Amalgamation, Consolidation, Merger, Transfer, Restructuring or
Reorganization" below, does not entitle a holder to demand payment of principal prior to maturity.

If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee may, in its discretion, and will upon the request in writing
of the holders of 25% in principal amount of debentures then outstanding under the Trust Indenture (debt securities outstanding
under the Trust Indenture, including the Notes, being referred to herein as "debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture",
“debentures under the Trust Indenture" or “"debentures") declare the principal, premium, if any, and interest, if any, on all
debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture to be immediately due and payable. However, the Trustee or the holders of not
less than 51 % in principal amount of debentures then outstanding under the Trust Indenture may, in certain circumstances, cancel
or annul the acceleration and waive the Event of Default. Subject to any such waiver and the provisions of any Extraordinary
Resolution (as defined under "Description of Notes — Certain Definitions” below), if the Bank fails to pay promptly any
principal, premium, if any, and interest, if any, declared by the Trustee to be due and payable following an Event of Default, the
Trustee may in its discretion or will upon receiving notice of and being directed by holders of 25% in principal amount of
debentures then outstanding under the Trust Indenture, and upon being indemnified to its reasonable satisfaction against all costs,
expenses and liabilities to be incurred, proceed to obtain or enforce payment of the amounts due and payable together with other
amounts due under the Trust Indenture by any remedy provided by law, whether by legal proceedings or otherwise. Holders of
Notes outstanding under the Trust Indenture may not enforce the Trust Indenture or the Notes except as provided in the Trust
Indenture.

Holders of debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture may, by Extraordinary Resolution, direct and control the
actions of the Trustee or of any holder of debentures or coupons bringing an action after the failure of the Trustee to act in any
proceedings against the Bank. The Trustee is required, within 30 days of becoming aware of an Event of Default, to give notice to
the holders of debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture unless the Trustee reasonably determines that the withholding of
notice of a continuing default is in the best interests of the holders.



Subordination

The Notes issued under the Trust Indenture and any coupons will be direct unsecured obligations of the Bank constituting
subordinated indebtedness for the purposes of the Bank Act, which in the event of the insolvency or winding-up of the Bank will
rank equally and rateably with but not prior to all other subordinated indebtedness of the Bank, including the debentures under the
trust indenture dated as of March 15,1981, as amended and supplemented, between the Bank and the Trustee (the
"1981 Indenture”) and will be subordinate in right of payment to the prior payment in full of (i) Indebtedness of the Bank then
outstanding, other than Subordinated Indebtedness, and (ii) all indebtedness to which the debentures under the 1981 Indenture are
subordinate in right of payment to the same extent as the debentures under the 1981 Indenture are subordinate thereto under the
terms of the 1981 Indenture. The definitions of certain terms used in the preceding paragraph can be found below under
"Description of Notes —- Certain Definitions".

Redemption and Purchase

If specified in the supplemental indenture relating to the issue of a series of Notes, the Bank may from time to time prior to
maturity, at its option, redeem the Notes of such series either in whole or in part, at such rate or rates of premium, if any, and
subject to such conditions, if any, determined at the time of issue. All redemptions are subject to applicable law and, where
applicable, the approval of the Superintendent.

In addition, the Bank may (subject, where applicable, to the approval of the Superintendent) purchase debentures of any
series outstanding under the Trust Indenture in the market, by tender or by private contract at such price or prices and upon such
terms and conditions as the Bank in its absolute discretion may determine, subject, however, to any applicable law restricting the
purchase of debentures and to such restrictions or conditions, if any, as determined at the time of the issue of the debentures and as
will have been expressed in the debentures or the supplemental indenture authorizing or providing for their issue.

Exchanges of Notes for Term Notes

If specified in the supplemental indenture relating to the issue of a series of Notes, a holder of Notes of such series will be
entitled to, but only upon notice from the Bank, which may be given from time to time only with the prior approval of the
Superintendent, exchange all, but not less than all, of such holder's Notes of such series on the date specified in the notice for an
equal aggregate principal amount of term notes of the Bank, together with accrued and unpaid interest to the date of exchange.
The material attributes of the term notes will be the same as those of the exchanged Notes, except that the term notes will rank
senior to the Notes and equally with the deposit liabilities of the Bank and will include events of default related to default in the
payment of principal or interest due thereon. Any such notice from the Bank will be given not less than 30 days nor more than
60 days prior to the date fixed for the exchange.

Conversion of Notes into New Debentures

If specified in the supplemental indenture relating to the issue of a series of Notes, a holder of Notes of such series will be
entitled to, but only upon notice from the Bank, which may be given from time to time only with the prior approval of the
Superintendent, convert, without payment of additional consideration, all, but not less than all, of such holder's Notes of such
series on the date specified in the notice into an equal aggregate principal amount of new debentures issued by the Bank, together
with accrued and unpaid interest to the date of conversion. Any such notice from the Bank will be given not less than 30 days and
nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for the conversion.

Covenants

The Bank covenants that it will: (i) duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal, premium, if any, and interest
payable in respect of the Notes issued under the Trust Indenture, in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions
contained in the Trust Indenture and the Notes issued under the Trust Indenture; (ii) carry on and conduct the business of banking
in a proper and efficient manner and that it will do or cause to be done all things which it may lawfully do or cause to be done to
preserve and keep in full force and effect its corporate existence (provided that this covenant will not prevent any amalgamation,
consolidation, merger, restructuring or reorganization of the Bank or any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of its
undertaking and assets, as described under "Description of Notes — Amalgamation, Consolidation, Merger, Transfer,
Restructuring or Reorganization" below); (iii) pay the Trustee reasonable remuneration for its services as trustee and repay the
Trustee all monies paid by the Trustee in the execution of its obligations under the Trust Indenture, such monies, including the
Trustee's remuneration, to be payable out of any funds coming into the possession of the Trustee and payable in priority to the




principal, premium, if any, or interest of the Notes issued under the Trust Indenture; (iv) not directly or indirectly extend or assent
to the extension of time for payment of any coupons or interest payable in respect of the Notes issued under the Trust Indenture;
(v) not create, incur or permit the existence of indebtedness which, in the event of the insolvency or winding-up of the Bank, will
rank subordinate to deposit liabilities and in priority to subordinated indebtedness issued and outstanding pursuant to the Trust
Indenture; and (vi) provide annually to the Trustee a certificate stating that the Bank has complied with all requirements contained
in the Trust Indenture that, if not complied with, would, with the giving of notice, lapse of time or otherwise, constitute an Event
of Default under the Trust Indenture, or, if there has been a failure to so comply, giving particulars of such failure to comply. In
addition, a pricing supplement may specify additional covenants with respect to a series of Notes issued under the Trust Indenture.

Amalgamation, Consolidation, Merger, Transfer, Restructuring or Reorganization

The Bank, without the consent of any holders of debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture and subject, where
applicable, to the approval of the regulatory authorities, may amalgamate, consolidate or merge or carry out any restructuring or
reorganization transaction with any other bank or transfer its undertaking and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole to
another bank provided that (i) the bank resulting from such amalgamation, consolidation, merger, restructuring or reorganization
or to which such transfer is made (the "Successor Bank") will be lawfully entitled to acquire and operate the undertaking and
assets of the Bank, (ii) as part of such amalgamation, consolidation, merger, transfer, restructuring or reorganization and in
consideration thereof, the Successor Bank enters into a covenant with the Trustee by way of supplemental indenture to pay
punctually when due the principal, premium, if any, and interest and other monies due or which may become due hereunder and to
perform and observe punctually all the obligations of the Bank under the Trust Indenture and under the debentures outstanding
thereunder, and (iii) every such amalgamation, consolidation, merger, transfer, restructuring or reorganization will be made on
such terms and at such times and otherwise in such manner as will be approved by the Bank and by the Trustee as not being
prejudicial to the interests of holders of debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture and as preserving and not impairing the
rights and powers of the Trustee and holders of debentures outstanding thereunder and the Bank will furnish to the Trustee an
opinion of counsel to this effect and as to compliance with (i) and (ii) above.

Discharge and Satisfaction

The Trustee will, at the request of the Bank, release and discharge the Trust Indenture and execute and deliver such
instruments as are required to release the Bank from its covenants under the Trust Indenture (other than the provisions relating to
indemnification of the Trustee), upon proof reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee being given (i) that the principal of, premium, if
any, and interest (including interest amounts in default, if any) on all debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture and all
other amounts payable under the Trust Indenture have been paid or satisfied, or (ii) that all the debentures outstanding under the
Trust Indenture have matured or have been duly called for redemption or retirement or the Trustee has been given irrevocable
instructions by the Bank to give within 90 days notice of redemption of all debentures outstanding under the Trust Indenture, and
such payment or redemption has been duly and efficiently provided for by payment to the Trustee or otherwise; and upon payment
of all costs, charges and expenses properly incurred by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Indenture and all interest thereon and the
remuneration of the Trustee, or upon provisions satisfactory to the Trustee being made.

Modification

The Trust Indenture provides that modifications and alterations of the Trust Indenture and of the debentures outstanding
under the Trust Indenture may be made if authorized by Extraordinary Resolution. If any modification or alteration affects the
rights of the holders of any series of debentures in a manner substantially different from that in which it affects the holders of
other series, such Extraordinary Resolution must, in addition, be approved in a similar manner by the holders of the series of
debentures so affected. The Trust Indenture provides that the quorum for meeting of holders of debentures outstanding thereunder
at which a resolution will be considered will be holders representing at least 25% in principal amount of the debentures then
outstanding under the Trust Indenture, provided that there are no quorum requirements at any adjourned meetings.

Governing Law
The Trust Indenture and any Notes issued thereunder and, unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement, any other

trust indenture and the debentures issued thereunder will be govermned by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Province of Québec and the laws of Canada as applicable therein.
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Certain Definitions

A summary of certain of the defined terms used in the Trust Indenture is set forth below. Reference is made to the Trust
[ndenture for the full definition of all such terms as well as any other terms for which no definition is provided in this prospectus.

"Debentures under the 1981 Indenture" means the debentures of the Bank issued and certified under the 1981 Indenture and
indentures supplemental thereto and for the time being outstanding.

"Extraordinary Resolution" means a resolution passed by the affirmative vote of the holders of not less than two-thirds in
principal amount of the debentures affected by such modification or alteration, present or represented and voted at a meeting of
such debenture holders, or an instrument or instruments in writing signed by the holders of not less than two-thirds in principal
amount of such debentures then outstanding.

"Indebtedness" at any time means:

(i)  the deposit liabilities of the Bank at such time; and

(ii)  all other liabilities and obligations of the Bank to third parties (other than fines or penalties which, pursuant to the
Bank Act, are a last charge on the assets of a bank in the case of insolvency of such bank and obligations to
shareholders of the Bank, as such) which would entitle such third parties to participate in a distribution of the Bank's
assets in the event of the insolvency or winding-up of the Bank.

"Subordinated Indebtedness” at any time means:

(i) the liability of the Bank in respect of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the debentures under the
Trust Indenture and the debentures under the 1981 Indenture;

(i) any Indebtzdness which ranks equally with and not prior to the debentures under the Trust Indenture or the
debentures under the 1981 Indenture in right of payment in the event of the insolvency or winding-up of the Bank
and which, pursuant to the terms of the instrument evidencing or creating the same, is expressed to be subordinate in
right of payment to all Indebtedness to which the debentures under the Trust Indenture are subordinate in right of
payment to at least the same extent as the debentures under the Trust Indenture are subordinate thereto under the
provisions of the Trust Indenture; and

(i) any Indebtedness which ranks subordinate to and not equally with or prior to the debentures under the Trust
Indenture or the debentures under the 1981 Indenture in right of payment in the event of the insolvency or winding-
up of the Bank and which, pursnant to the terms of the instrument evidencing or creating the same, is expressed to
be subordinate in right of payment to all Indebtedness to which the debentures under the Trust Indenture are
subordinate in right of payment to at least the same extent as the debentures under the Trust Indenture are
subordinate thereto under the provisions of the Trust Indenture.

EARNINGS COVERAGE RATIOS

The following consolidated earnings coverage ratios, which give effect to the debentures outstanding as of July 31, 2006
and October 31, 2005 respectively, are calculated as at July 31, 2006 and October 31, 2005 and do not reflect the issuance of any
Notes under this prospectus:

July 31, 2006 October 31, 2008

Earnings coverage on subordinated debenfures..........cc.ocoveviinininiiiniiiie, 14.6 times 12.71 times

The ratios as at July 31, 2006 or for the twelve-month period then ended are based on financial information which is
unaudited. The ratios as at October 31, 2005 or for the twelve-month period then ended are based on financial information which
is audited. Foreign currency amounts have been translated to Canadian dollars using rates of exchange as at July 31,2006 and
October 31, 2005, respectively.

The Bank’s interest requirements, before giving effect to the issue of any Notes under this prospectus, amounted to $87.7
million for the 12 months ended July 31, 2006. The Bank’s income before income taxes, non controlling interest and interest on

subordinated debentures for the 12 months then ended was $1,280 million which is 14.6 times the Bank’s interest requirements for
this period.
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Updated earnings coverage ratios will be filed quarterly with the applicable securities regulatory authorities, either as
prospectus supplements or as exhibits to the Bank's unaudited interim and audited annual consolidated financial statements.

CONSQLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth the consolidated capitalization of the Bank as at the respective dates. This table should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of the Bank and the management’s discussion and analysis of the
Bank, which are incorporated by reference in the prospectus:

July 31 October 31
2006 2005
(millions of §)
Subordinated DEDENIUTES .......cviciiuireereerererierirereesteressesrestosnsrerestesberesaesesestassssassosestosnassessores $ 1599 § 1,102
Capital StOCK — Prefered. ......c.civervernincecieminii et ieteieees s seeeneicisnenseesmosnns 3 400 $ 400
e COMUTION caveeteeirte st v st e ctesters s o s st sasseebe st steat st s sessnseseseasasssbessasssberes $ 1563 $ 1,565
CONIEBULEA SUTPIUS .....cv.vevevrcricenicenetrte e seee e enscsnssr e ensisen e rmasessioeserssens $ 19 $ 13
Unrealized foreign cuirency translation adjustments ........cccovvvecinenniiernmiesiiemiesnnes $ (82) $ (26)
Retained BarmiNgS ..o ceorscrerenuieereninirereeeneenrersereseressesiarstsesensmessenmsesssonssssessresssesssesaseras $§ 2802 § 2645
Total Capitalization . ... § 6301 § 5699

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Notes will be offered separately by one or more of National Bank Financial Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., Casgrain &
Company Limited, CIBC World Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (Canada) Inc., Laurentian Bank Securities Inc., Merrill Lynch
Canada Inc., JP Morgan Securities Canada Inc., RBC Capital Markets, Scotia Capital Inc. and TD Securities Inc. and other dealers
that may be appointed from time to time by the Bank (collectively, the "Dealers"). Under a dealer agreement dated o, 2006, as the
same may be amended and supplemented from time to time, between the Bank and the Dealers, the Notes may be purchased at
various times by any of the Dealers, as agent, underwriter or as principal, at prices and commissions to be agreed upon, for resale
to the public at prices to be negotiated with purchasers. Resale prices may vary during the distribution period and between
purchasers. The Bank may also offer the Notes to purchasers directly, pursuant to registration exemptions, at prices and terms to
be negotiated.

If underwriters are used in the sale, the Notes will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account and may be resold
from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying
prices determined at the time of sale. The obligations of the underwriters to purchase such Notes will be subject to certain
conditions precedent, and the underwriters will be obligated to purchase all the Notes of the series offered by the pricing
supplement if any of such Notes are purchased. Any public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or re-allowed
or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time.

The Notes may also be sold directly by the Bank at such prices and upon such terms as agreed to by the Bank and the
purchaser or through agents designated by the Bank from time to time. Any agent involved in the offering and sale of the Notes in
respect of which this prospectus is delivered will be named, and any commissions payable by the Bank to such agent will be set
forth, in the pricing supplement. Unless otherwise indicated in the pricing supplement, any agent is acting on a best efforts basis
for the period of its appointment.

The Bank may agree to pay the underwriters a commission for various services relating to the issue and sale of any Notes
offered hereby. Any such commission will be paid out of the general funds of the Bank. Underwriters, dealers and agents who
participate in the distribution of the Notes may be entitled, under agreements to be entered into with the Bank, to indemnification
by the Bank against certain liabilities, including liabilities under securities legislation, or to contribution with respect to payments
which such underwriters, dealers or agents may be required to make in respect thereof. Such underwriters, dealers or agents may
be customers of, engage in transactions with or perform services for the Bank in the ordinary course of business.

In connection with any offering of the Notes (unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement), the underwriters may

over-allot or effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Notes offered at a higher level than that which
might exist in the open market. These transactions may be commenced, interrupted or discontinued at any time.
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The Notes are not and will ot be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (the "1933 Act"), as amended,
and the Dealers have agreed not to (i) buy or offer to buy, (ii) sell or offer to sell or (iii) solicit any offer to buy any Notes as part
of any distribution under this prospectus in the United States, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its
jurisdiction or to, or for the account of, a U.S. person, except pursuant to exemptions from the /933 Act.

National Bank Financial Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. The decision to offer the Notes and the terms of any
offering will be negotiated at arm's length between the Bank, National Bank Financial Inc. and any other Dealers. National Bank
Financial Inc. will not receive any benefit in connection with any offering other than the commission payable to it.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in Notes of the Bank is subject to certain risks including those risks inherent in conducting the business of a
diversified financial institution. Before deciding whether to invest in any Notes, investors should consider carefully the risks set
out herein and incorporated by reference in this prospectus (including subsequently filed documents incorporated by reference)
and, if applicable, those described in a pricing supplement relating to a specific offering of Notes.

Bank’s Creditworthiness

The value of Notes will be affected by the general creditworthiness of the Bank. Prospective purchasers should consider the
categories of risks identified and discussed in the section entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis" contained in the
Bank's Annual Report for the year ended October 31, 2005, incorporated by reference. Subsequent discussions and analyses for
interim and full year periods subsequent to the date of this prospectus will be incorporated by reference. These analyses discuss,
among other things, known material trends and events, and risks or uncertainties that are reasonably expected to have a material
effect on the Bank's business, financial condition or results of operations.

Real or anticipated changes in credit ratings on the Notes may affect the market value of Notes. In addition, real or
anticipated changes in cradit ratings can affect the cost at which the Bank can transact or obtain funding, and thereby affect the
Bank's liquidity, business, financial condition or results of operations.

See "Eamings Coverage" which is relevant to an assessment of the risk that the Bank will be unable to pay interest or
principal on Notes when due.

Risks Relating to the Subordinated Nature of the Notes

Holders of Notes and other subordinated indebtedness have a limited right to accelerate payment of principal on default. A
default may be declared and the obligation to repay principal accelerated only in prescribed circumstances summarized under
"Description of Notes — Events of Default”.

The Notes are direct unsecured obligations of the Bank, constituting subordinated indebtedness for the purposes of the Bank
Act, ranking at least equally and rateably with other subordinated indebtedness of the Bank from time to time issued and
outstanding. In the event of insolvency or winding up of the Bank, the indebtedness evidenced by debentures issued by the Bank,
including the Notes, will be subordinate in right of payment to the prior payment in full of the deposit liabilities of the Bank and
all other liabilities of the Bank except liabilities which by their terms rank in right of payment equally with or subordinate to
indebtedness evidenced by such debentures. Except to the extent regulatory capital requirements affect the Bank's decisions to
issue subordinated or more senior debt, there is no limit on the Bank's ability to incur additional subordinated or more senior debt.

Uncertain Secondary Market for the Notes

The Bank does not expect to list Notes on any stock exchange and there can be no assurance that there will be a secondary
market for the Notes. The underwriters, dealers or agents of the Notes, if any, may from time to time purchase and sell Notes in
the secondary market or make a market for the Notes, but will not be obliged to do so. There can be no assurance as to a
secondary market for the Notes, liquidity in any such market, if any such market develops, or any market making activities by any
of the underwriters, dealers or agents of the Notes. This may affect the pricing of the Notes in the secondary market, the
transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the Notes and the extent of issuer regulation.
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Interest Rate Risk

Prevailing interest rates will affect the market value of Notes which carry a fixed interest rate. Assuming all other factors
remain unchanged, the market value of Notes which carry a fixed interest rate will decline as prevailing interest rates for
comparable debt instruments rise, and increase as prevailing interest rates for comparable debt instruments decline.

Additional Debt

Except to the extent regulatory capital requirements affect the Bank’s decisions to issue subordinated or senior debt, there is
no limit on the Bank’s ability to incur additional subordinated or more senior debt.

Risks Relating to Notes in Foreign Currencies

Notes denominated or payable in foreign currencies may entail significant risks. These risks include the possibility of
significant fluctuations in the foreign currency markets, the imposition or medification of foreign exchange controls and potential
illiquidity in the secondary markets. These risks will vary depending upon the currency or currencies involved and will be more
fully described in the applicable pricing supplement.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement, the net proceeds to the Bank from the sale of the Notes will be added to
the general funds of the Bank and will be used for general banking purposes.

LEGAL MATTERS

Unless otherwise specified in a pricing supplement, certain legal matters relating to the Notes offered by a pricing
supplement will be passed upon, on behalf of the Bank, by McCarthy Tétrault LLP and on behalf of the Dealers by Fasken
Martineau DuMoulin LLP.

As at September 5, 2006, the partners and associates of each of McCarthy Tétrault LLP and Fasken Martineau DuMoulin
LLP, beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, less than 1 % of the issued and outstanding securities of the Bank or its affiliates
and associates.

PURCHASER'S STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw from an
agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt or deemed receipt of a
prospectus, the accompanying pricing supplement relating to securities purchased by a purchaser and any amendment. In several
of the provinces, securities legislation further provides a purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in certain jurisdictions,
damages where the prospectus, the accompanying pricing supplement relating to securities purchased by a purchaser and any
amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, provided that such remedies for rescission, damages
are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of such purchaser's province. The
purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser's province for the particulars of
these rights or consult with a legal adviser.
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AUDITORS' CONSENT

We have read the Short Form Base Shelf Prospectus of National Bank of Canada (the "Bank") dated September o, 2006
relating to the offering of Medium Term Notes of the Bank in an aggregate principal amount of up to $2,500,000,000 (the
"Prospectus”). We have complied with Canadian generally accepted standards for an auditors' involvement with offering
documents.

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the above-mentioned Prospectus of our report to the Shareholders of the
Bank on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Bank as at October 31, 2005 and 2004 and the Consolidated Statements of
Income, Changes in Shareholder's Equity and Cash Flows for the years then ended. Our report is dated December 8, 2005.

Chartered Accountants
Montréal, Canada
September o, 2006
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CERTIFICATE OF THE BANK
Dated: September 6, 2006

This short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated in this prospectus by reference, will, as of the date of
the last supplement to this prospectus relating to the securities offered by this prospectus and the supplement(s), constitute full,
true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this prospectus and the supplement(s) as required
by the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada. For the purpose of the Province of Québec, this simplified
prospectus, together with documents incorporated herein by reference and as supplemented by the permanent information record,
will contain no misrepresentation that is likely to affect the value or the market price of the securities to be distributed.

(Signed) REAL RAYMOND (Signed) PIERRE FITZGIBBON
President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President Finance, Technology and
Corporate Affairs

(as Chief Financial Officer)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(Signed) PIERRE BOURGIE (Signed) LOUIS VACHON
Director Director



CERTIFICATE OF THE DEALERS

Dated: September 6, 2006

To the best of our kriowledge, information and belief, this short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated
in this prospectus by reference, will, as of the date of the last supplement to this prospectus relating to the securities offered by this

prospectus and the supplement(s), constitute full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by
this prospectus and the supplement(s) as required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada. For the purpose

of the Province of Québec, this simplified prospectus, together with documents incorporated herein by reference and as
supplemented by the permanent information record, will contain no misrepresentation that is likely to affect the value or the

market price of the securities to be distributed.

NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL INC.

By: (Signed) Darin Deschamps

BMO NESBITT BURNS INC.

By: (Signed) Pierre-Olivier Perras

HSBC SECURITIES (CANADA) INC.

By: (Signed) Luc Buisson

JP MORGAN SECURITIES CANADA INC.

By: (Signed) Kenneth R. Knowles

Scotr1A CAPITALINC.

By: (Signed) Eric Michaud

CASGRAIN & COMPANY LIMITED

By: (Signed) Gaston Simoneau

LAURENTIAN BANK SECURITIES INC.

By: (Signed) Michel Richard

CIBC WORLD MARKETS INC.

By: (Signed) Charles St-Germain

MERRILL LYNCH CANADA INC.

By: (Signed) Susan Rimmer

RBC CAPITAL MARKETS

By: (Signed) Vincent Joli-Coeur

TD SECURITIES INC.

By: (Signed) Paul Noreau



File No. 82-3764

National Bank of Canada

1293-2(b) Submission

English summary of the MRRS decision document dated September 7. 2006

DECISION DOCUMENT

This mutual reliance review system decision document evidences that receipts of the regulators
in each of British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, Ontario, Québec, New-
Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Prince Edward Island, Newfoundland and Labrador, the North-West
Territory, Yukon and Nunavut have been issued for a preliminary short form prospectus dated
September 6, 2006.

Dated at Montreal, September 7, 2006 AN
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L’ Autorité des marchés financiers

[signed]

SEDAR Project No.: 940449

MONTREAL:781466.1
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English summary of the decision of the Autorité des marchés financiers dated
September 7, 2006

DECISION NO.: 2006-MC-2314
SEDAR PROJECT NO.: 940449

RECEIPT FOR FINAL LONG FORM PROSPECTUS

(Mutual Reliance Review System)

Pursuant to the May 19, 2006 request;

Pursuant to article 20 of the Securities Act (Québec), LR.Q., c. V-11, a receipt for the
Preliminary Short Form Prospectus dated September 6, 2006 is granted.

Receipt dated September 7, 2006.

{signed]

MONTREAL:781466.1
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DES MARCHES
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DECISION N° : 2006-MC-2314
NUMERO DE PROJET SEDAR: 990449

VISA DE PROSPECTUS SIMPLIFIE PROVISOIRE

(Régime d’examen concerté)

Banque Nationale du Canada

Nom de 'émetteur

En application de l'article 20 de la Loi sur les valeurs mobiliéres, L.R.Q., c. \*1.1, le visa est
octroyé a votre prospectus simplifié provisoire du 6 septembre 2006 .

L’'Autorité des marchés financiers,

Le 7 septembre 2006 (s) Louis Auger
Date du visa Louis Auger
Chef du Service du financement des
sociétés
/ast

300, square Victoria, 22iéme étage, tour de la Bourse, C.P. 246, Montréal (Québec) H4Z 1G3
Tél. : (514) 395-0337 * Télécopieur : (514) 873-6155



AUTORITE
DES MARCHES
FINANCIERS

AFFAIRE INTERESSANT L'AVIS 43-201 RELATIF AU
REGIME D’EXAMEN CONCERTE DU PROSPECTUS

ET

Banque Nationale du Canada

Nom de I'émetteur

DOCUMENT DE DECISION

Le présent document de décision du régime d'examen concerté confirme que le prospectus
simplifié provisoire de I'émetteur susmentionné en date du 6 septembre 2006 a été visé par les
autorités de la Colombie-Britannique, de ['Alberta, de la Saskatchewan du Manitoba, de
I'Ontario, du  Québec, du  Nouveau-Brunswick, de la Nouvelle-Ecosse, de
I'fle-du-Prince-Edouard, de Terre-Neuve et Labrador, des Territoires du Nord-Ouest, du Yukon
et du Nunavut.

Fait a Montréal, le 7 septembre 2006.

L’Autorité des marchés financiers,

(s) Louis Auger
Louis Auger
Chef du Service du financement des sociétés

Numéro du projet SEDAR : 990449

00, square Victoria, 22iéme étage, tour de la Bourse, C.P. 246, Montréa! (Québec) H4Z 1G3
Ték 1 (514) 395-0337 * Télécopieur: (514) 873-6155
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2006

¢ Revenues of $933 million, an increase of 5%
o Diluted earnings per share of $1.30, up 10%
¢ Return on common shareholders’ equity increased to 20.2%

.~\

quarter ended July 31, 2006 Dunng the quarter, the Bank posted growth in revenues and prof tabi lty/
compared to the corresponding year-earlier period. AV

The Bank’s three main business segments each reported higher revenues and profitability, and
improved productivity. Total revenues increased robustly on the strength of the Personal and
Commercial segment. With net income totalling $220 million, the third quarter was the best quarter
for the Bank this fiscal year.

“The disciplined deployment of our strategies continues to pay off. Increasing the profitability of our
operations is more important than just trying to grab a larger share of the market. The success of this
approach is borne out in wider spreads and the continued high quality of our loan portfolio. We are
well on our way to achieving our financial targets for fiscal 2006,” said Réal Raymond, President and
Chief Executive Officer.

During the quarter, National Bank appointed Louis Vachon as Chief Operating Officer of the Bank. In
creating this position, the Bank intends to boost operational efficiency by fostering synergy among its
operating units. It will also afford Mr. Raymond more time to focus on the Bank's strategic
development, client and investor relations and risk management.

Highlights

¢ Growth in total revenues in the third quarter of 2006 to $933 miilion, up 5% from $889 million in
the third quarter of 2005.

¢ Rise in diluted earnings per share to $1.30, a 10% increase over the year-earlier period. The
quarter was highlighted by an after-tax gain of 5 cents per share associated with the initial public
offering of MasterCard Inc., of which the Bank is a shareholder.

¢ Increase in ROE of 60 basis points to 20.2% versus 19.6% in the corresponding quarter of 2005.

e Optimization of the capital structure through the issue of $225 million of innovative instruments
that qualify as Tier 1 capital.

Personal and Commercial

e Rise of 6.5% in total revenues at Personal and Commercial due mainly to vigorous growth in
loan volumes over the third quarter of 2005. Insurance-related revenues increased 15% from the
third quarter of 2005.

* Return of the net interest margin to Q1 2006 levels, just shy of where it stood in Q3 2005.

¢ Continued improvement in commercial loans and deposits as a result of the propitious business
climate in Quebec and the ongoing development of specialized markets. Foreign exchange
revenues rose 25% from the year-earlier period.

« Signing of a cooperation agreement between the Bank and UniCredit Group to assist
commercial clients in their business dealings with counterparties in Central and Eastern Europe,
Russia, Ukraine and Turkey.



Wealth Management

¢ Growth of 16% in revenues from trust services and mutual funds owing to continued interest in
private investment management services and long-term mutual funds.

+ Launch of six new tax-effective Monthly Income Portfolios to meet the needs of investors
seeking regular income streams.

Financial Markets

¢ Strong performance from Financial Markets despite reduced activity on secondary markets and
fewer new securities issues. The marked increase in gains on investment account securities
offset the decline in trading revenues.

Financial Objectives

Objectives Results Results

3 quarter Nine months

2006 2006

Growth in diluted earnings per share 5% - 10% 6% 8%
excluding specified items

Return on common shareholders’ equity 16% - 18% 20.2% 20.2%

Tier 1 capital ratio More than 8.5% 9.4% 9.4%

Dividend payout ratio 35% - 45% 37% 37%




Financial Information
(unaudited)
(millions of dollars)

Personal and Commercial
Wealth Management
Financial Markets

Other

Net income

Less specified items:

e  gain related to the MasterCard IPO

« et gain on the sale of shareholder management activities (included in
Wealth Management)

e gain on the disposal of investments in South America

. reduction in the general aliowance for credit risk

Net income excluding specified items

Diluted earnings per share

Less specified items:

¢ (ain related to the MasterCard IPO

. net gain on the sale of shareholder management activities (included in
\Wealth Management)

¢ gain on the disposal of investments in South America

¢ raduction in the general allowance for credit risk

Diluted earnings per share excluding specified items

Return on common shareholders’ equity

{millions of dollars)
Personal and Commercial
Wealth Management

Financial Markets

Other
Net income

Less specified items:

e  gain related to the MasterCard IPO

. net gain on the sale of shareholder management activities (inciuded in
Wealth Management)

e gain on the disposal of investments in South America

. reduction in the general allowance for credit risk

Net earnings excluding specified items

Diluted earnings per share

Less specified items:

e gain related to the MasterCard IPO

* netgain on the sale of shareholder management activities {included in
Wealth Management)

. gain on the disposal of investments in South America

¢ reduction in the general allowance for credit risk

Diluted earnings per share excluding specified items

Return on common shareholders’ equity

For the quarter
ended July 31

2006 2005
130 116
34 29

60 54
(4) 8
220 207
(9) -
211 207
$1.30 $1.18
(0.05) -
$1.25 $1.18
20.2% 19.6%
For the nine months
ended July 31
2008 2005
355 333
114 85
208 192
(26) 38
651 8548
9 -
(5 -

- (25)

- (1)

637 612
$3.83 $3.70
{0.09) -
(0.03) -
- (0.15)

- (0.07)
$3.75 $3.48

20.2%

21.1%

%
+12
+17
+11

+6

+2
+10

+6

%
+7
+34
+8

+4

+4

+8



Caution regarding forward-looking statements

From time to time, National Bank of Canada makes written and oral forward-looking statements in
this quarterly report, in other filings with Canadian regulators or the United States Securities and
Exchange Comrnission, in reports 1o shareholders, in press releases and in other communications.
All such statements are made pursuant to Canadian securities regulations and the provisions of the
United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward looking statements
include, among others, statements with respect to the economy, market changes, the achievement
of strategic objectives, certain risks as well as statements with respect to our beliefs, plans,
expectations, estimates and intentions. These forward-looking statements are typically identified by
the words “may,” “could,” “should,” “would,” “suspect,” “outlook,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”

“expect,” “intend,” “plan,” and words and expressions of similar import.

" o, » i "o » o (I

By their very nature, such forward-looking statements require us to make assumptions and involve
inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific. There is significant risk that express or
implied projections contained in such statements will not materialize or will not be accurate. A
number of factors could cause actual future results, conditions, actions or events to differ materially
from the targets, expectations, estimates or intentions expressed in the forward-looking statements.
Such differences may be caused by factors, many of which are beyond the Bank’s control, which
include, but are not limited to, the management of credit, market and liquidity risks; the strength of
the Canadian and United States economies and the economies of other countries in which the Bank
conducts business; the impact of the movement of the Canadian dollar relative to other currencies,
particularly the U.S. dollar; the effects of changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest
rate policies of the Bank of Canada; the effects of competition in the markets in which the Bank
operates; the impact of changes in the laws and regulations reguiating financial services and
enforcement thereof (including banking, insurance and securities); judicial judgments and legal
proceedings; the Bank’s ability to obtain accurate and complete information from or on behalf of its
clients or counterparties; the Bank’s ability to successfully realign its organization, resources and
processes; its ability to complete strategic acquisitions and integrate them successfully; changes in
the accounting policies and methods the Bank uses to report its financial condition, including
uncertainties associated with critical accounting assumptions and estimates; operational and
infrastructure risks; other factors that may affect future results, including changes in trade policies,
timely development of new products and services, changes in estimates relating to reserves,
changes in tax laws, technological changes, unexpected changes in consumer spending and saving
habits; natural disasters; the possible impact on the business from public health emergencies,
conflicts, other international events and other developments, including those relating to the war on
terrorism; and the Bank’s success in anticipating and managing the foregoing risks.

Additional information about these factors can be found under “Risk Management,” “Risk
Management Framework,” “Credit Risk Management,” “Market Risk Management,” “Liquidity Risk
Management,” “Operational Risk Management,” and “Factors that could affect future results” in the
2005 Annual Report.

The Bank cautions that the foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive. Investors and others
who base themselves on the Bank's forward-looking statements should carefully consider the above
factors as well as the uncertainties they represent and the risk they entail. The Bank also cautions
readers not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

August 31, 2006 — The following text presents Management’s discussion and analysis of the Bank’s
financial condition and operating results. This analysis was prepared in accordance with Multilateral
Instrument 51-102 respecting Continuous Disclosure Obligations of the Canadian Securities
Administrators and is based on the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the third
quarter and the first nine months of fiscal 2006. Additional information about National Bank of
Canada, including the Annual Information Form, can be obtained from the SEDAR website at
www.sedar.com and the Bank’s website at www.nbc.ca.

Analysis of Results

Consolidated Results

National Bank posted net income of $220 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2006, up 6% from $207
million for the same period of 2005. Excluding the after-tax gain of $9 million from the initial public
offering by MasterCard Inc., of which the Bank is a shareholder, net income was $211 million. Net
income for the first nine months of fiscal 2006 was $651 million for the Bank,

$3 million more than for the same period of 2005. Had it not been for specified items, i.e., the
MasterCard IPO, the net gain on the sale of shareholder management activities, the gain on the
disposal of invesiments in South America and the reduction in the general allowance for credit risk in
the first nine moriths of 2005 and 2006, net income would have been $25 million or 4% higher period
over period.

Diluted earnings per share amounted to $1.30 in the third quarter of 2006, up 10% from $1.18 for the
same period of 2005. Excluding the gain from the MasterCard IPO in the third quarter of 20086,
diluted earnings per share increased $0.07. Diluted earnings per share in the first nine months of
2006 were $3.83, up 4% from the first nine months of 2005. Excluding specified items, diluted
earnings per share grew 8% from period to period.

Total Revenues

The Bank’s total revenues rose 5% in the third quarter of 2006 to reach $933 million, as against
$889 million in the third quarter of 2005. Personal and Commercial net interest income advanced
$19 million, or 5.8%, to $348 million for the quarter, owing to higher volumes of both consumer loans
and business loans and deposits. Although the net interest margin narrowed compared to the
corresponding quarter of 2005, it widened between the second and third quarter of 2006. The
improvement in the spread on deposits cancelled out the deterioration of credit product spreads
caused by competition.

Trading revenues, recorded in both net interest income and other income, decreased by $40 million
from the third quarter of 2005 to the third quarter of 2006. The decline was more than offset by gains
on investment account securities. These gains amounted to $60 million in the third quarter of 2006,
with $13 million before tax coming from the MasterCard 1PO, and represented a substantial increase
compared to the $7 million loss in the third quarter of 2005.

Revenues from mutual funds and trust services climbed $10 million from the third quarter of 2005 to
reach $83 million in the third quarter of 2006. Most of the increase stemmed from the growth in
private investment management and mutual funds.

Aside from these items, the increase in other income was attributable to commissions on loans and
bankers’ acceptances, foreign exchange revenues and other revenues, which together rose $27
million. Securitization revenues, however, were $38 million this quarter, as against $48 million in the
third quarter of 2005.



Financial market fees amounted to $139 million in the third quarter of 2006, compared to $158
million in the year-earlier period, due to the slowdown in secondary market activities and the smaller
number of new issues.

Total revenues in the first nine months of 2006 grew 3% to reach $2,861 million, versus $2,772
million in the corresponding period of 2005. Personal and Commercial net interest income advanced
$47 million, or 4.9%, to $1,013 million in the first nine months of 2006. Compared to the same period
of 2005, trading revenues fell $17 million to $246 million, gains on securities rose $43 million to $130
million and revenues from trust services and mutual funds grew $40 million to $247 million. Similarly,
other revenues, foreign exchange revenues and lending fees increased $80 million. Securitization
revenues declined $26 million to $117 million and financial market fees decreased $54 million to
$462 million.

Operating Expenses

In the third quarter of 2006, operating expenses were $634 million, up $18 million from the year-
earlier period. Salaries and staff benefits decreased $1 million to $354 million, with the decrease in
variable compensation offsetting the increase in regular salaries and pension plan costs during the
third quarter of 2006. The ratio of salaries and staff benefits to operating expenses fell 2% to 56%.
Technology expenses were up $6 million while professional fees increased $7 million to $40 million.
Changes in these expenses depend on the completion schedule for technological development
projects.

For the first nine months of 2006, operating expenses were up $48 million, to $1,901 million. This
growth was due to professional fees, which were up $12 million, salaries and staff benefits, which
rose $12 million, and technology expenses, which increased $14 million.

income Taxes

Income taxes for the third quarter of 2006 totalled $58 million, representing an effective tax rate of
20.5%, compared to $46 million and an effective tax rate of 17.8% for the year-earlier period. The tax
rate for the third quarter of 2006 was affected by the receipt of tax-exempt dividends, while in the
third quarter of 2005 the tax rate was reduced by a transaction on the financial markets. For the first
nine months of 2006, income taxes amounted to $233 million, for an effective tax rate of 25.7%, as
against $219 million and an effective tax rate of 24.7% for the corresponding period of 2005.

Results by Segment
Personal and Commercial

Net income for the Personal and Commercial segment totalled $130 million for the third quarter of
2006, up 12% from the $116 million in net income earned in the corresponding quarter of 2005. Total
revenues for the segment climbed 7% to $559 million. At Personal Banking, total revenues rose $22
million, or 6%, owing chiefly to growth of $2.8 billion in average asset volumes, attributable mainly to
consumer loans, but also to residential mortgages and credit card advances. The increase in
revenues stemming from higher loan volumes was partly offset by a narrowing of the spread on
these products. However, the decrease in the spread on credit products was fully offset by the
improvement in the spread on transaction deposits that resulted from the rise in interest rates.
Insurance revenues jumped 15%, at an annualized rate. Total revenues for Commercial Banking
were up $12 million, or 7%, due to the increase in net interest income attributable to higher volumes
of loans and acceptances and growth in foreign exchange revenues. Although the spread on
Commercial Banking credit products in the third quarter of 2006 was slightly narrower than in the
third quarter of 2005, it was relatively steady compared to the second quarter of 2006. The spread
on deposits cancelled out the decrease in the spread on credit products, at an annualized rate.



Operating expenses for the Personal and Commercial segment were $339 million for the third
quarter of 2006, as against $324 million for the year-earlier period, for an increase of 5%, which is
lower than the growth in total revenues. As a result, the efficiency ratio declined to 60.6% for the
third quarter of 2006 from 61.7% for the same quarter of 2005. The segment’s provision for credit
losses was decreased by $2 million to $24 million due to a higher recovery rate for Commercial
Banking.

For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, the Personal and Commercial segment posted net income of
$355 million, a 7% increase over the $333 million recorded for the same period of 2005. Total
revenues for the segment rose 6% to $1,608 million on growth of $62 million or 6% at Personal
Banking and $26 million or 5% at Commercial Banking. The efficiency ratio moved down to 61.3% in
the first nine months of 2006 from 61.9% for the same period a year earlier.

Wealth Management

Net income for the Wealth Management segment totalled $34 million for the third quarter of 2006,
compared to $29 million for the corresponding quarter of 2005, for an increase of 17%. The
segment's total revenues advanced 3% to $204 million for the third quarter of 2006. A slowdown of
activities on secondary markets affecting revenues for Individual Investor Services at National Bank
Financial was offset by strong growth in trust and mutual fund activities. Operating expenses were
up $2 million, or 1%, to $152 million this quarter. The efficiency ratio dropped from 75.4% in the third
quarter of 2005 to 74.5% this quarter.

For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, net income for the Wealth Management segment amounted
to $114 million versus $85 million for the same period in 2005, for an increase of 34%. Total
revenues for the segment rose 8% to $648 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2006. Operating
expenses edged up barely $11 million or 2% to $472 million.

Financial Markets

For the quarter ended July 31, 2006, the Financial Markets segment posted net income of $60
million, up $6 million or 11% from the year-earlier period. Total segment revenues rose $15 million to
$238 million. Higher gains on securities were partly offset by lower trading revenues. The reduction
in new issues of securities was evident in the $9 million drop in financial market fees, while revenues
from corporate banking services rose $9 million, mainly because of an increase in the value of credit
derivatives. Operating expenses for the quarter were $143 million, up $3 million from the year-earlier
period. This modest increase was due to a reduction in variable compensation. The provision for
credit losses for the quarter stood at $1 million, compared to nil in the corresponding quarter of 2005.
For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, the segment'’s net income totalled $208 million, up $16
million, or 8%, from the year-earlier period.

Financial Market Revenues

(taxable equivalent basis ) Q3 Q3
(millions of dollars) 2006 2005
Trading revenues
Equity 56 86
Interest rate 11 11
Commodity and foreign exchange 1 10
68 107
Financial market fees 57 66
Gains on securities 43 -
Banking services 34 25
Other 36 25

Total 238 223




(1) Taxable equivalent basis is a calculation method that consists in grossing up certain tax-exempt
income by the amount of income tax that otherwise would have been payable. The use of the
taxable equivalent basis is not in accordance with GAAP. Securities regulators require that
companies caution readers that measures adjusted on a basis other than GAAP do not have
standardized meanings under GAAP and may not be comparable to similar measures used by other
companies. Please refer to Note 12 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the
impact of the taxable equivalent adjustment to segment results.

Other

The “Other” heading of segment results recorded a loss of $4 million for the third quarter of 2006,
compared to net income of $8 million for the same period a year earlier. The pre-tax gain of $13
million related to the MasterCard IPO partly offset the impact of lower securitization revenues and
net interest income. For the first nine months of fiscat 20086, the “Other” heading recorded a loss of
$26 million, as against a gain of $38 million for the corresponding period of 2005, when the Bank
recorded a $37 million pre-tax gain on the disposal of investments and reversed $17 million of the
general allowance for credit risk. ‘

Cash Flows

Due to the nature of the Bank’s business, most of its revenues and expenses are cash items.
Moreover, significant cash flow movement can be observed in certain activities, such as trading
activities, and could impact several assets and liabilities such as trading account securities,
securities sold short or securities sold under repurchase agreements.

For the third quarter of 2006, cash and cash equivalents declined $0.4 billion compared to a
decrease of $0.9 billion for the third quarter of 2005. As at July 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents
totailed $9.2 billion versus $8.0 billion the previous year.

Operating activities generated cash inflows of $1.2 billion for the third quarter of 2006, mainly
because of the decrease in trading account securities. For the corresponding quarter of 2005,
operating activities required cash of $1.6 billion because of the increase of $3.4 billion for trading
account securities, partly offset by $1.6 billion in inflows from other items.

Financing activities in the third quarter of 2006 required cash of $2.3 billion, mostly in purchased
funds, owing chieily to lower deposits. For the third quarter of 2005, the $1.7 billion increase in
obligations related to securities sold short and the $7.6 billion rise in securities sold under
repurchase agreements accounted for $8.2 billion in cash inflows from financing activities.

Finally, investing activities generated cash of $0.7 billion in the third quarter of 2006. In the
corresponding quarter of 2005, investing activities required cash of $7.5 billion due to the $2.3 billion
increase in loans, the $3.7 billion rise in deposits with financial institutions pledged as collateral and
the $1.4 billion in securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements.

Risk Management

Credit Risk

In the third quarter of 2006, the Bank recorded specific provisions for credit losses of $16 million, an
increase of $1 million over the third quarter of 2005. As at July 31, 2006, gross impaired loans stood
at $214 million compared to $260 million at the end of fiscal 2005. This decline was primarily due to
the successful recovery of impaired business loans. The ratio of gross impaired loans to total
adjusted capital and allowances was only 5.6%. As at July 31, 2006, allowances for credit losses
exceeded gross impaired loans by $210 million versus $191 million as at October 31, 2005.



Market Risk — Trading Activities

The Value-at-Risk (VaR) simulation model is one of the main tools used to manage market risk in
trading activities. VaR is the maximum value of potential daily losses, measured at a 99%
confidence level, which means that actual losses are likely to exceed VaR only one day out of 100.
The computerized VaR calculation model is based on two years of historical data. Market risk
management is discussed in more detail on page 61 of the 2005 Annual Report. The table below,
entitled “Trading Activities,” illustrates the allocation of market risk by type of risk: interest rate,

foreign exchange, equity price and commodity.

Trading Activities'"
(millions of doliars)

Global VaR by risk

For the quarter ended

For the quarter ended

category July 31, 2006 April 30, 2006

Period High Average Low  Period High  Average Low

end end

Interest rate (3.3) {7.6) 4.2) (2.4) (7.1) (8.2) (5.8) (3.8)
Foreign exchange (1.6) (1.9) (1.3) (0.8) 0.9) (2.2) (1.5) (0.6)
Equity (3.8) (4.2) (3.4) (2.3) (3.7) (6.7) (4.9) (3.7)
Commodity ‘ (1.0) (1.6) (1.1 (0.7 (1.4) (1.4) (0.9) (0.7
Correlation effect® 4.8 7.3 45 23 6.5 9.5 6.0 3.2
Global VaR (4.9) (8.0) (5.5) (3.9)  (6.6) (9.0) (71) (54

T Amounts are presented on a pre-tax basis and represent one-day VaR.
@ The correlation effect is the result of the diversification of types of risk.

Balance Sheet

As at July 31, 2006, the Bank had assets of $108.6 billion, up $1.0 billion versus $107.6 billion at the
end of fiscal 2005, Loans and acceptances were up $1.6 billion, In addition, cash, deposits with
financial institutions, securities and securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements
increased $0.3 billion. The table below presents the main portfolios.

Average monthly volumes
{millions of dollars)

Loans and acceptances*
Residential mortgages
Consumer loans

Credit card receivables
SME loans

Corporate loans

Deposits

Personal (balance)

Off-balance sheet personal savings (balance)
Business

*including securitized assets

July October July
2006 2005 2005
21,313 20,728 20,419
9,302 8,283 7,832
1,741 1,707 1,680
15,210 14,182 14,858
3,614 3,216 2,892
51,180 48,116 47,681
29,178 26,385 25,476
67,580 63,262 63,776
12,288 11,103 11,250




Residential mortgage loans rose steadily during the third quarter of 2006, reaching $21.3 billion as
against $20.4 billion in the year-eartier period. Consumer loans climbed 19% to $9.3 billion, primarily
driven by secured lines of credit. Higher consumer spending also accounted for the increase in credit
card receivables, which were up 3.6% over the previous year to total $1.7 billion as at July 31, 2006.
Business loans continued to grow, with SME loans up 2.4% year over year, to $15.2 billion as at July
31, 2006. Average volumes of corporate loans, for their part, rose $700 million to $3.6 biilion.

Personal deposits stood at $29.2 billion as at July 31, 2006, up $3.7 billion or 14.5% from the
corresponding quarter of 2005, chiefly owing to deposits distributed by Altamira. Off-balance sheet
personal savings administered by the Bank as at July 31, 2006 totalled $67.6 billion, an increase of
$3.8 billion or 6.0% in a year. The rise was primarily attributable to savings administered by
brokerage subsidiaries, with the remainder divided between private investment management and
mutual funds.

Accounting Policies and Estimates

The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (*GAAP”). The reader is referred to Note 1 and Note 2a to
the 2005 annual consolidated financial statements for more information on the significant accounting
policies used to prepare the financial statements.

There have not been any changes to the Bank's significant accounting policies affecting the first nine
months ended July 31, 2006.

Details of significant future changes in accounting standards are presented in Note 2 to the interim
consolidated financial statements.

The key assumptions and bases for estimates made by Management in accordance with GAAP and
their impact on armounts presented in the interim consolidated financial statements and notes remain
essentially unchanged from those described in the 2005 Annual Report.

Capital

Tier 1 and totai capital ratios, according to the rules of the Bank for International Settlements, stood
at 9.4% and 12.4%, respectively, as at July 31, 2006 versus 9.6% and 12.8% as at October 31,
2005, including the $500 million debenture issued on November 2, 2005. During the third quarter of
2006, the Bank issued $225 million in innovative capital instruments. During the first nine months of
fiscal 2006, the Bank repurchased 4.5 million common shares for a total of $275 million as part of its
normal course issuer bids.

Risk-weighted assets rose $2.4 billion or 5.2% since the start of the fiscal year mainly because of
higher loan volumes.

Dividends

At its meeting on August 31, 2006, the Board of Directors declared regular dividends on the various
classes and series of preferred shares as well as a 50 cent dividend per common share, payable on
November 1, 2006 to shareholders of record on September 28, 2006.



Additional Financial Information

(unaudited)
{millians of doliars except per share amounts)

Total revenues
Net income

Earnings per share
Basic
Oiuted

Dividends per common share

Return on common sharehoiclers' equity

Total assets

Impaired ioans,net

Per common share
Book value
Stock trading range
High
Low

2006

2005 2004 2008 2004
Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 [o] Q2 Q1 Q4 Total Tota
$933 $949 5879 $931 $889 $900 $983 3892 $3,703 $3,545
20 | 214 27 207 207 202 239 192 855 725
132 128 1.28 122 1.20 117 1.39 1 488 4.10
130 126 126 120 148 115 137 109 490 4.05
0.50 048 0.48 0.44 044 042 042 038 172 1.42
0.2 %( 204 % 199 % 194 % 196 % 19.9 % 236 % 187 % 207 % 188 %
$108,645 . $111,183 $105,276 $107.598 §110,593 $89,917 $31703 $88,497
98 M 13 "7 114 19 134 160
26.57 2577 25.72 2539 2470 24.19 2397 22,87
6269 £5.60 63.90 6147 58.21 5524 49,75 48.78
56.14 61.35 58.35 55.87 51.80 48.72 46.39 42.31




Highlights
(unaudited)

Operating resuits

(millions of dollars)

Total revenues

Net income

Return on common shareholders’ equity

Per common share
Earnings - basic
Earnings - diluted
Dividends declared
Book value
Stock trading range

High

Low

Close

Financial position
(millions of dollars)

Total assets
Loans and acceptances
Deposits
Subordinated debentures and shareholders’ equity
Capital ratios - BIS
Tier 1
Total
Impaired loans, net of specific and general allowances
as a % of loans and acceptances
Assets under administration/management
Total personal savings
Interest coverage
Asset coverage

Other information

Number of employees

Number of branches in Canada
Number of banking machines

Quarter ended July 31

Nine months ended July 31

% %
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
$933 $889 5 $2,361 $2,772 3
220 207 6 651 548 -
20.2 % 19.6 % 20.2 % 21.1 %
$1.32 $1.20 10 $3.89 $3.76 3
$1.30 $1.18 10 $3.83° $3.70 4
050 . 0.44 14 1.46 1.28 14
26.57 2470 8
62.69 58.21 65.60 58.21
56.14 51.60 56.14 46.39
58.55 57.30 58.55 57.30
July 31 October 31
2006 2005
$108,645 107,598 § 1
51,943 50,360 3
68,094 61,977 10
6,301 5,699 1
94 % 96 %
124 %, 12.8" o
(210} (191)
(0.4) %: (0.4) %
227,699 221,132
96,758 89,647
14.60 12.71
3.65 473
17,183 16 890 2
453 457 (N
800 788 2

U Taking into account the issuance of $500 million of subordinated debentures on November 2, 2005,



Consolidated Statement of Income

Quarter ended Nine months ended
{unaudited) July 31 April 30 July 31 July 31 July 31
(millions of dallars) 2006 . 2006 2005 2006 2005
Interest income and dividends '
Loans 687 ; 627 538 1,928 1,553
Securities 236 260 189 700 550
Deposits with financial institutions 83! 77 52 218 126
1,006 | 964 779 2,846 | 2,229
Interest expense :
Deposits 433 | 447 330 1,319 843
Subordinated debentures 23, 22 25 69 79
Other 142 194 118 471 270
598 | 663 471 1,859 1,192
Net interest income 408 | 301 308 987 1,037
i
Other income o
Financial market fees 138 164 158 462 516
Depaosit and payment service charges 53 52 51 155 149
Trading revenues (losses) (39); 102 94 229 180
Gains (Josses) on investment account securities, net 60 28 (7) 130 87
Card service revenues 17 14 17 45 49
Lending fees 69 ¢ 83 €6 184 ¢ 181
Acceptances, letters of credit and guarantee 19, 16 15 51 46
Securitization revenues 38 39 48 117 143
Foreign exchange revenues 25! 24 20 72 56
Trust services and mutua’ funds 83 83 73 247 . 207
Other 61. €3 46 172 121
525 - 648 581 1,874 1,735
Total revenues 933" 949 889 2,861 2,772
Provision for credit [osses - 16! 22 15 55 33
917 ¢ 927 874 2,806 2,739
Operating expenses i
Salaries and staff benefits 354 358 355 1;091 ' 1,079
Occupancy 31! 33 29 94 . 90
Technology .07 105 101 322 308
Communications 18 19 19 55 59
Professional fees ' 40 32 33 102 ; 90
Other 84 76 79 237 227
634 : 623 616 1,901 . 1,853
Income hefare income taxes and non-controlling
interest 283 304 258 905 886
Income taxes 58 82 46 233 219
225« 222 212 672 . 667
Non-controlting interest 5 8 5 21 19
Net income 220 . 214 207 651" 648
Dividends on preferred shares 6! 5 8 16 21
Net income available to common shareholders 214 ' 209 199 635 627
Number of common shares outstanding (thousands)
Average - basic 181,927 162,598 165,363 163,149 166,789
Average - diluted 164,512 165,552 187,849 165,903 : 169,310
End of period 161,918 161,882 165,098 161,918 165,096
Net earnings per common share (dollars) .
Basic 1.32 1.29 1.20 3.89 3.76
Diluted 1.30 1.28 1.18 3.83 3.70

Dividends per common share (dollars) 0.50 Q.48 Q.44 1.46 1.28




Consolidated Balance Sheet

(unaudited)
(millions of dollars)

ASSETS

Cash
Deposits with financial institutions

Securities
Investment account
Trading account

Securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements

Loans (Notes 4 and 5)
Residential mortgage
Personal and credlit card
Business and government

Allowance for credlit losses

Other

Customers' liability under acceptances

Fair value of trading derivative financial instruments
Premises and equipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Deposits

Personal

Business and government
Deposit-taking institutions

Deposit from NBC Capital Trust (Note 6)

Other

Acceptances

Obligations related to securities sold short
Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Fair value of trading derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities

Subordinated debantures (Note 7)
Non-controiling interest

Shareholders’ equity (Note 9)

Preferred shares

Common shares

Contributed surplus

Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustments
Retained earnings

July 31. April 30 October 31 July 31
2006 2006 2005 2005
257 226 227 232
9,029 9,467 10,087 11,799
7,715 7,671 6,716 6,945
27,705 28,839 26,336 27,745
35,420 36,510 33,052 34,690
5,954 7,549 7,023 8,270
15,440 14,889 15,677 16,005
10,961 10,687 9,796 9,292
22,368 22,285 22,096 20,978
48,769 47,861 47,569 46,275
(424) (439) {451) (480)
48,345 47 422 47,118 45,795
3598 3,677 3,242 2,842
2,438 2,599 2,390 2,844
355 | 345 355 345
686 662 662 662
177 177 178 179
2,386 2,549 3,264 2,935
9,640 - 10,009 10,091 9,807
108,645 © 111,183 107 598 110,593
29,178 28,270 26,385 25,476
29,097 30,930 29,636 28,474
9,594 10,918 5,956 7,043
225 - - -
68,004 70,118 61,977 60,993
-3,598 3677 3,242 2,842
14,864 15,094 15,504 16,776
7,620 7,541 12,915 14,526
1,623 1,997 1,846 2,386
6,023 6,068 5,928 6,593
33,728 34,377 39,435 43,123
1,599 1,599 1,102 1,409
522 517 487 415
400 400 400 575
1,563 1,558 1,565 1,557
19 17 13 12
{82}, (77) (26) (10)
2,802 2,674 2,645 2,519
4,702 4,572 4597 4,653
108,645 111,183 107,598 110,593




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

(unaudited)
(millions of doliars)

Preferred shares at beginning
Issuance of preferred shares, Series 16
Preferred shares at end

Common shares at beginning
Issuance of common shares
Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase plan
Stock Option Plan
Repurchase of common shares for cancellation (Note 9)
Impact of shares acquired or sold for trading purposes
Common shares at end

Contributed surplus at beginning
Stock option expense (Note 10)
Contributed surplus at end

Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustments at beginning

Losses on foreign exchange operations with a functional currency
other than the Canadian dollar, net of income taxes

Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustments at end

Retained earnings at beginning
Net income
Impact of initial adoption of AcG-15 "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities"
Dividends
Preferred shares
Common shares
Premium paid on common shares repurchased for cancellation (Note 9)
Share issuance and other expenses, net of income taxes
Retained earnings at end

Shareholders’ equity

Nine months ended July 31

2006 2005
400 375
. 200
400 575
1,565 1,545
11 9
31 42
(43); (39)
(1). -
1,563 1,657
13 7
[ 5
19 12
(26)’ (10)
(56). -
(82) (10)
2,645 2,287
651 048
- 6
(16) (21)
{240) (214)
(232) (185)
(6) (@)
2,802 2,519
4,702 4653




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(unaudited)
(millions of dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments for:
Provision for credit losses
Amortization of premises and equipment
Fulure income taxes
Translation adjustment on foreign currency subordinated debentures
Gains (losses) on sale of investment account securities, net
Gains on asset securitization and other transfers of receivables, net
Stock option expense
Change in interest payable:
Change in interest and dividends receivable
Change in income taxes payable
Change in net fair value arnounts of trading derivative financial instruments
Change in trading account securities
Change in other items

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in deposits

Issuance of deposit from NBC Capitat Trust
Issuance of subordinated debentures

Repurchase of subordinated debentures

Issuance of common shares

Issuance of preferred shares

Repurchase of common shares for cancellation
Dividends paid on common shares

Dividends paid on preferred shares

Change in obligations related to securities sold short
Change in securities sold under repurchase agreements
Change in other items

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in deposits with financial institutions pledged as coliateral
Change in loans

Proceeds from securitization of assets and other transfers of receivables
Maturity of securitized assets

Purchases of investment account securities

Sales of investment account securities

Change in securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements
Consolidation of assets in accordance with AcG-15

Net acquisitions of premises and eguipment

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
Cash and cash equivalents t end

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash

Deposits with financial institutions
Less: Amount pledged as collateral

Supplementary information
Interest paid
income taxes paid

Quarter ended July 31 Nine months ended July 31
2006 2005 2006 2005
220 207 651 648
16 15 55 33
16 15 49 45

5 (1) 10 (3 )
. (1) ) 1
(60 ). 7 (130 ) (87 )
(19 ) (32 ) 62 ) (87 )
2 2 6 5
41 ) 50 57 62
9 12 63 (12 )
27 (18 ) 95 10
213 ) {54 ) 211 ) (46 )
1134 = (3,398 ) (1,369 ) (7,184 )
110 1,632 807 270
1,206 (1,574 ) (42 ) (6,372 )
(2,249): (753) 5,892 7,561
225 . 225 .
- - 500 350
- (350) - (350)
5. 18 41 51
- - - 200
- (75) (275). (224)
(79); - (231) (205)
(5); 6] (18}, (19)
(230) 1,688 (640) 6,572
78 7,641 (5,295). 6,344
5); @ __{56) (4)
(2,259 )i 8,153 145 - 20,276
34 (3.680) 3,974 (3.619)
{1,263) (2,336) (2,784) (5,645)
324 . 278 1,502 2,021
- (208) - (706)
{44,346) (9,226) (101,071} (21,233)
44,368 . 9,089 100,203 21,858
1,595 (1.427) 1,069 (3,774)
) - )] (132)
(26) (7) (49) (39)
680 (7,525 ) 2,843 (11,269 )
(373 ) (946 ) 2,946 2,635
9,595 8,914 6,276 5333
8,222 7,868 9,222 7,968
257 232 257 232
9,029 11,799 9,029 11,799
(64 ) (4,063 ) (64 ) (4,063 )
9,222 7,968 9,222 7,968
639 421 1,802 1,130
28 79 176 174




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited) (millions of dollars)

These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2005. Certain comparative
figures have been reclassified to comply with the presentation adopted in fiscal 2008.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (*GAAP”) and the accounting
policies described in the Bank’s most recent Annual Report for the year ended October 31, 2005.

2. Recent Accounting Standards Pending Adoption

Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement, Hedges and Comprehensive Income
In January 2005, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) issued three new
standards: “Financial Instruments -~ Recognition and Measurement,” “Hedges” and “Comprehensive
Income.” The main consequences of implementing these standards are described below.

All financial assets and liabilities will be carried at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
except for items classified in the following categories, which will be carried at amortized cost: loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity securities and financial liabilities not held for trading. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities that are held for trading will be
recorded in the Consolidated Statement of income. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets
that are available for sale will be reported in Other comprehensive income until realized, at which
time they will be recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income. All derivatives, including
embedded derivatives that must be accounted for separately, will be recorded at fair value in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

For fair value heclges, changes in the fair value of the derivatives and corresponding changes in fair
value of the hedged items attributed to the risk being hedged will be recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the changes in the fair values of
the derivative instruments will be recorded in Other comprehensive income until the hedged items
are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Other comprehensive income, which comprises the above items as well as unrealized exchange
gains and losses on self-sustaining foreign operations (net of hedging activities), will be included as
a separate component of the Consoclidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. A new
statement entitled “Statement of Comprehensive Income” will be added to the Bank’s consolidated
financial statements.

These new standards will apply to the Bank effective November 1, 2006. The impact of implementing
these new standards on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements cannot yet be determined as it
is dependent on the Bank's unsettled positions and hedging strategies and on market volatility at the
time of transition.

3. Transfers of Receivables

Securitization transactions

CMHC-guaranteed mortgage loans and credit card receivables

The Bank securitizes guaranteed residential mortgage loans through the creation of mortgage-
backed securities. The Bank also sells credit card receivables on a revolving basis to a trust. The
pre-tax gain or loss from securitization transactions, net of transaction fees, is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Income under “Securitization revenues.”



Securitization operations for the

quarter ended: July 31, 2006  April 30, 2006 July 31, 2005
Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage
loans loans loans
Net cash proceeds 324 618 335
Retained interests 7 17 16
Retained servicing liability (2) 4) (2)
329 631 349
Receivables securitized and soid 328 626 336
Gain before income taxes, net of
transaction fees 1 5 13
Mortgage-backed securities created
and retained included in the item ‘
“Securities — investment account” 43 278 -
Securitization operations for the
nine months ended: July 31, 2006 July 31, 2005
Mortgage Mortgage  Credit card
loans loans receivables
Net cash proceeds 1,361 1,135 795
Retained interests 37 54 21
Retained servicing liability (8) (7) (4)
1,390 1,182 812
Receivables securitized and sold 1,379 1,141 800

Gain before income taxes, net of

transaction fees 11 41 12
Mortgage-backed securities created

and retained included in the item

“Securities — investment account” 596 140 -

The key assumptions used to measure the fair value of retained interests at the securitization date
for transactions carried out during the quarter ended July 31, 2006 were as follows:

Guaranteed mortgage loans — Key assumptions 2006
Weighted average term (months) 29.4
Prepayment rate 20.0%
Excess spread, net of credit losses 0.9%
Expected credit losses -
Discount rate 4.6%

Other transfers

The Bank sells insured and uninsured mortgage loans to a mutual fund administered by the Bank.
The pre-tax gain cr loss is carried in the Consolidated Statement of Income under “Other income —
Other.” The following table summarizes the other transfers carried out by the Bank:

Nine months ended

July 31,2006  July 31, 2005
Net cash proceeds 141 294
insured and uninsured mortgage loans sold 140 296
Gain (loss) before income taxes 1 (2)




4. Loans and Impaired Loans

July 31, 2006

Residential mortgage
Personal and credit card
Business and government
General allowance

Impaired loans, net of specific and general allowances

October 31, 2005
Residential mortgage
Personal and credit card
Business and government

General allowance ¢

Impaired loans, net of specific and general allowances

Impaired loans

Gross Specific Net
amount Gross  allowances balance
15,440 13 2 11
10,961 36 17 19
22,368 165 97 68
48,769 214 116 98

{ 308)

(210)
15,677 10 2 8
9,796 35 18 17
22,086 215 123 92
47,569 260 143 117

(308)

{191)

™ The general allowance for credit risk was created taking into account the Bank's credit in its entirety.

5. Allowance for Credit Losses

The changes made to allowances are as follows:

Allowances at beginning
Provision for credit losses
Write-offs

Recoveries

Allowances at end

Allocated Unallocated Nine months ended

Specific general general July 31 July 31
allowances allowance aliowance 2006 2005
143 241 67 451 578

55 (8) 6 55 33

(129) - - (129) (171)

47 - - 47 40

116 235 73 424 480




6. Deposit from NBC Capital Trust

On June 15, 2006, NBC Capital Trust (the “Trust"), an open-end trust established under the laws of
the Province of nfario, issued 225,000 transferable non-voting trust units called Trust Capital
Securities — Series 1, or NBC CapS-Series 1. The gross proceeds from the offering of $225 million
were used by the Trust to acquire a deposit note from the Bank. Since the Bank does not
consolidate the Trust, the deposit note is presented on the consolidated balance sheet of the Bank
under “Deposits*.

The deposit note bears interest at a fixed annual rate of 5.329% payable semi-annually in arrears up
to June 30, 2016 and thereafter at a fixed annual rate equal to the Bankers' Acceptance Rate plus
1.50%. The deposit note, which wili mature on June 30, 2056, may be redeemed, on and after June
30, 2011, at the option of the Bank, without the consent of the Trust, subject to prior written notice
and prior approval of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, or upon the occurrence of certain
regulatory or tax events as defined. If the Bank redeems the deposit note, in whole or in part, the
Trust will be required to redeem a corresponding amount of NBC CapS-Series 1.

Each $1,000 of principal amount of the deposit note is convertible at any time into 40 First Preferred
Shares Series 17 of the Bank at the option of the Trust. The Trust will exercise this conversion right
in circumstances in which holders of NBC CapS-Series 1 exercise their exchange rights.

Failure by the Bank to make payment or to satisfy its other obligations under the deposit note will not
entitle the Trust to accelerate payment of the deposit note.

The Trust is a variable interest entity under Accounting Guideline No 15 “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities” {AcG ~ 15). Although, the Bank owns the equity and voting control of the Trust, the
Bank does not consolidate the Trust because the Bank is not the primary beneficiary; therefore, NBC
CapS-Series 1 issued by the Trust are not reported on the Bank's Consolidated Balance Sheet, but
the deposit note is reported under “Deposits”.

The non-cumulative cash distribution per NBC CapS-Series 1 will be $26.645 (representing an
annual yield of 5.329% of the $1,000 initial issue price) paid by the Trust semi-annually from
December 31, 2006 to and including June 30, 2016, and thereafter, will be determined by multiplying
$1,000 by one-haif of the sum of the applicable Bankers’ Acceptance Rate plus 1.50%. No cash
distributions will be payable by the Trust on NBC CapS-Series 1 if the Bank fails to declare regular
dividends on its preferred shares, or if no preferred shares are then outstanding, on its outstanding
common shares. In this case, the net distributable funds of the Trust will be paid to the Bank as
holder of the Special Trust Securities, representing the residual interest in the Trust. Should the
Trust fail to pay the semi-annual distributions in full on the NBC CapS-Series 1, the Bank will not
declare dividends on any of its preferred shares and common shares for a specified period of time.
The NBC CapS-Series 1 are not redeemable at the option of the holder.

On or after June 30, 2011, the Trust may, at its option, redeem the NBC CapS-Series 1, in whole or
in part, without the consent of the holders, subject to prior written notice and prior approval of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions or upon the occurrence of certain regulatory or tax events as
defined.



Holders of NBC CapS-Series 1may surrender at any time, subject to prior notice, each NBC CapS-
Series 1 for 40 First Preferred Shares Series 17 of the Bank. The Bank's First Preferred Shares
Series 17 pay semi-annual non-cumulative cash dividends as and when declared by the Board of
Directors and will be redeemable at the option of the Bank, with the prior approval of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions, on or after June 30, 2011, but not at the option of the
holders. This exchange right will be effected through the conversion by the Trust of the
corresponding amount of the depasit note of the Bank. The NBC CapS-Series 1 exchanged for the
Bank’s First Preferred Shares Series 17 will be cancelled by the Trust.

Each NBC CapS-Series 1 will be exchanged automatically, without the consent of the holders, for 40
First Preferred Shares Series 18 of the Bank, upon the occurrence of any ane of the following
events: (i) proceedings are commenced for the winding-up of the Bank; (ii) the Superintendent of
Financia! Institutions takes control of the Bank; (iii) the Bank has a Tier 1 capital ratio of iess than 5%
or a total capital ratio of less than 8%, or (iv) the Superintendent of Financial institutions has directed
the Bank to increase its capital or to provide additional liquidity and the Bank elects such automatic
exchange or the Bank fails to comply with such direction to the satisfaction of the Superintendent.
The Bank's First Preferred Shares Series 18 pay semi-annual non-cumulative cash dividends and
will be redeemable at the option of the Bank, with the prior approval of the Superintendent of
Financial Institutions, on or after June 30, 2011, but not at the option of the holders. On an automatic
exchange, the Bank will hold all outstanding trust capital securities of the Trust, the main asset of
which is the deposit note.

As at July 31, 2006, for regulatory capital purposes, $225 million of NBC CapS-Series 1 qualify as
Tier 1 capital.

7. Subordinated Debentures
On November 2, 2005, the Bank issued $500 million of subordinated debentures that mature in
2020. Interest at the annual rate of 4.70% is payable semi-annually on May 2 and November 2 of

each year.

8. Pension and Other Employee Future Benefits

Quarter ended Nine months ended
July 31 April 30 July 31 July 31 July 31
2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Pension benefit expense 15 15 14 44 38
Other employee future benefit 2 7
expense 2 2 4
9. Capital Stock
Shares outstanding and dividends as at July
31, 2006 Shares Dividends
Number of shares $ $ pershare
First preferred shares
Series 15 8,000,000 200 9 0.3656
Series 16 8,000,000 200 7 0.3031
16,000,000 400 16
Common shares 161,917,623 1,563 240 0.5000

1,963 256




Repurchase of common shares

On January 23, 2006, the Bank commenced a normal course issuer bid to repurchase, for
cancellation, up to 8,278,000 common shares over a 12-month period ending no later than January
22, 2007. Repurchases are made on the open market at market prices through the facilities of the
Toronto Stock Exchange. Premiums paid above the average book value of the common shares are
charged to retained earnings. As at July 31, 2006, the Bank had repurchased 2,700,820 common
shares at a cost of $169 million, which reduced common share capital by $26 million and retained
earnings by $143 million.

On January 13, 2005, the Bank commenced a normal course issuer bid o repurchase, for
cancellation, up to 8,400,000 common shares over a 12-month period ended January 12, 2006.
Repurchases are made on the open market at market prices through the facilities of the Toronto
Stock Exchange. Premiums paid above the average book value of the common shares are charged
to retained earnirgs. During the nine months ended July 31, 2006, the Bank repurchased 1,771,600
common shares at a cost of $106 miilion, which reduced common share capital by $17 million and
retained earnings by $89 million.

10. Stock-Based Compensation
Stock Option Plan

During the nine months ended July 31, 20086, the Bank awarded 943,200 stock options (1,468,260
in 2005) at a fair value of $12,81 ($9,70 in 2005).

As at July 31, 2006, a total of 5,481,517 stock options were outstanding.

The fair value of these options was estimated, on the award date, using the Black-Scholes valuation
model. The following assumptions were used:

Nine months ended

July 31, 2006 July 31, 2005
Risk-free interest rate 418 % 405 %
Expected life of the options 6 years 6 years
Expected volatility 248 % 27 %
Expected dividend yield 5 % ' 5 %

The following table presents the compensation expense recorded for the stock options :

Quarter ended Nine months ended ]
July 31,  April 30, July 31,  July 31,2006 July 31, 2005
2006 2006 2005
Bank stock options 2 2 2 6 5

Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) Plan
During the nine maonths ended July 31, 2008, the Bank awarded 5,400 SARs. As at July 31, 2008, a
total of 316,850 SARs were outstanding.

Deferred Stock Unit (DSU) Plan for Officers
During the nine months ended July 31, 2006, the Bank awarded 32,911 DSUs. As at July 31, 2006,
a total of 125,569 DSUs for officers were outstanding.

Restricted Stock Unit Plan (RSU)
During the nine months ended July 31, 2006, the Bank awarded 117,655 RSUs (76,582 during the
quarter ended July 31, 2006). As at July 31, 2006, a total of 162,147 RSUs were outstanding.



11. Acquisition ~ Credigy Ltd.

On July 26, 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank acquired a 68% interest in Credigy Ltd., a privately held
purchaser of and service-provider for distressed receivables of, mainly, U.S. consumers, for a total
cash consideration of $59.1 million, including direct acquisition costs.

The assets acquired totalled approximately $105.2 million while the liabilities assumed, including
non-controlling interest, were about $70.0 million. The excess of the purchase price over the
estimated fair value of net assets of $23.9 million was recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as goodwill. This amount could be adjusted once the Bank has completed its valuation of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.

An additional cash consideration of up to $18.7 million could be paid over the next three years,
provided certain profitability targets are achieved and, if applicable, would be recognized as goodwill.

Credigy’s results have been recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income as of the July 26,
2006 acquisition date.



12. Segment Disclosures

Quarter ended July 31

Personal and Weaith Financial
Commercial Management Markets Other Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net interest income M 348 329 30 25 111 19 (81) (65) 408 308
Other income o 211 196 174 174 127 204 13 7 525 581
Total revenues 559 525 204 199 238 223 (68) (58} 933 889
Operating expenses 339 324 152 150 143 140 - 2 634 616
Contribution 220 201 52 49 95 83 {68) (60) 299 273
Provision for credit losses 24 26 . - 1 - (9) {(11) 16 15
Income before income taxas and
non-controlling interest 196 175 52 49 94 83 (59) (49) 283 258
Income taxes o 66 59 17 19 34 29 (59) (81) 58 46
Non-controlling interest - - 1 1 - - 4 4 5 5
Net income {net loss}) 130 116 34 29 60 54 (4) 8 220 207
Average assets 47,820 44,576 874 870 67,860 55,458 (9,877) (5.458) 106,677 95,444
Nine months ended July 31
Personal and Wealth Financial
Commercial Management Markets Other Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 20086 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net interest income @ 1,013 966 89 73 13 180 (228) (182) 987 1,037
Other income @ 595 554 559 525 649 562 71 94 1,874 1,735
Total revenues 1,608 1,520 648 598 762 742 (157} (88) 2,861 2,772
Operating expenses 985 941 472 461 436 444 8 7 1,901 1,853
Contribution 623 579 176 137 326 298 {165) (95) 960 919
Provision for credit losses 88 79 - - 3 4 {36) (50 §5 33
Income before income taxes and
non-controlling interest 535 500 176 137 323 294 (129) (45) 905 886
Income taxes @ 180 167 58 49 111 101 (116) ( 98) 233 219
Non-controlling interest . - 4 3 4 1 13 15 21 19
Net income (net loss) 355 333 114 85 208 192 {26) 38 651 648
Average assets 47,049 43,433 920 881 66,374 49,407 (9,127) (5,524) 105,216 88,197

Parsonal and Commercial

The Personal and Commercial segment comprises the branch network, intermediary services, credit cards, insurance, commercial banking services
and real estate.

Wealth Management

The Weaith Management segment comprises full-service retall brokerage, direct brokerage, mutual funds, trust services and portfolio management.
Financial Markets

The Financial Markets segment encompasses corporate financing and lending, treasury operations, including asset and liability management for the
Bank, and corporate brokerage.

Other

The Other heading comprisas securitization operations, certain non-recurring items and the unallocated portion of

centralized services,

(1) Taxable equivatent
The accounting policies are the same as those described in the note on accounting policies (Note 1), with the exception of the net interest income,
other income and income taxes of the operating segments, which are presented on a taxable equivalent basis. Taxable equivalent basis is a calculation
method that consists in grossing up certain tax-exempt income by the amount of income tax that otherwise would have been payable. For all of the
operaling segments, net interest income was grossed up by $23 miliion ($24 million in 2005) and other income by $32 million ($36 million
in 2005). An equal amount was added to income taxes. The impact of these adjustments is reversed under the "Other" heading.

(2) For the nine months enced July 31, 2006, net interest income was grossed up by $60 million (363 million in 2005) and other income by $46 million
($52 million in 2005). An equivalent amount was added to income taxes. The impact of these increases Is reversed under the "Other” heading.




Information for Shareholders and Investors

Investor Relations

Financial analysts and investors who want to obtain financial information on
the Bank are asked to contact the investor Relations Department.

600 De La Gauchetiére Street West, 7th Floor

Montreal, Quebec H3B 4L2

Telephone: (514) 394-0296

Toll free: 1-800-517-5455

Fax: (514) 394-6196

E-mail: investorrelations@nbc.ca

Website: www.nbc.cal/investorrelations

Public Relations

600 De La Gauchetiere Street West, 10th Floor
Montreal, Quebec H3B 4L2

Telephone: (514) 394-8644

Fax: (514) 394-6258

Website: www.nbc.ca
General information: telnat@nbc.ca

Next quarterly report publication date for fiscal 2005-2006
Fourth quarter: November 30, 2006

DISCLOSURE OF 3rd QUARTER 2006 RESULTS

Conference Call

* A conference call for analysts and institutional investors will be held on August 31, 2006 at 1:00
p.m. EDT.

e Access by telephone in listen-only mode : 1-866-898-9626 or (416) 340-2216

¢ Arecording of the conference call can be heard until September 7, 2006 by calling 1-800-408-
3053 or (416) 695-5800. The access code is 3194419#.

Webcast:
¢ The conference call will be webcast live at www.nbc.cal/investorrelations
e A recording of the webcast will also be available on the Internet after the call.

Financial Documents

e The quarterly financial statements are available at all times on National Bank's website at
www.nbc.cal/investorrelations.
The Report to Shareholders, supplementary financial information and a slide presentation will be
available on the Investor Relations page of National Bank's website shortly before the start of the
conference call.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For information about stock transfers, address changes, dividends, lost certificates, tax forms and
estate transfers, shareholders are requested to contact the Transfer Agent, Computershare Trust
Company of Canada, at the address or telephone numbers beilow.



Computershare Trust Company of Canada
Share Ownership Management

1100 University, 12th Floor

Montreal, Quebec H3B 2G7

Telephone: (514) 871-7171

1-800-341-1419

Fax: (514) 871-7442

E-mait: clientele@tbn.bnc.ca

Direct Deposit Service for Dividends

Shareholders may elect to have their dividend payments deposited directly via electronic funds
transfer to their bank account at any financial institution that is a member of the Canadian Payments
Association. To do so, they must send a written request to the Transfer Agent, Computershare Trust
Company of Canada.

Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan

National Bank offers holders of its common shares a Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase
Plan through which they can invest in common shares of the Bank without paying a commission or
administration fee. Participants in the Plan may acquire shares by reinvesting cash dividends paid on
shares they hold or by making optional cash payments of at least $500 per payment, to a maximum
of $5,000 per quarter. For additional information, please contact the Registrar, Computershare Trust
Company of Canada, at 1-800-341-1419 or (514) 871-7171.

-30-

About the National Bank of Canada

National Bank of Canada is an integrated group which provides comprehensive financial services to consumers, small
and medium-sized enterprises and large corporations in its core market, while offering specialized services to its
clients elsewhere in the world. The National Bank offers a full array of banking services, including retail, corporate and
investment banking. It is an active player on international capital markets and, through its subsidiaries, is involved in
securities brokerage, insurance and wealth management as well as mutual fund and retirement plan management.
National Bank has close to $109 billion in assets and, together with its subsidiaries, employs 17,183 people. The
Bank'’s securities are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (NA:TSX). For more information, visit the Bank’s website
at www.nbe.ca. '

For more information:

Pierre Fitzgibbon Denis Dubé Héléne Baril
Senior Vice-President Senior Director Senior Director
Finance, Technclogy and Corporate Public Relations investor Relations
Affairs (514) 394-8644 (514) 394-0296

(514) 394-8610
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National Bank maintains revenue and profitability growth

in third quarter of 2006

¢ Revenues of $933 million, an increase of 5%
¢ Diluted earnings per share of $1.30, up 10%

® Return on common shareholders’ equity increased to 20.2%

THIRD QUARTER | 2006
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MONTREAL, August 31, 2006 - National Bank today released
its earnings report for the third quarter ended July 31, 2006.
During the quarter, the Bank posted growth in revenues and
profitability compared to the corresponding year-earlier period.

The Bank's three main business segments each reported higher
revenues and profitability, and improved productivity. Total rev-
enues increased robustly on the strength of the Personal and
Commercial segment. With net income totalling $220 million, the
third quarter was the best quarter for the Bank this fiscal year.

“Tne disciplined deployment of our strategies continues to pay
off. Increasing the profitability of our operations is more impor-
tant than just trying to grab a larger share of the market. The
success of this approach is borre out in wider spreads and the
continued high guality of our loan portfolio. We are well on our
way to achieving our financial targets for fiscal 2006, said Réal
Raymaond, President and Chief Executive Officer.

During the guarter, National Bank appointed Louis Vachon as
Chief Operating Officer of the Eank. In creating this position, the
Bank intends to boost operational efficiency by fostering synergy
among its operating units. It will also afford Mr. Raymond more
time to focus on the Bank's strategic development, client and
investor relations and risk management.

Highlights

* Growth in total revenues in the third quarter of 2006 to
$933 million, up 5% from $889 million in the third quarter
of 2005.

& Rise in diluted earnings per share to $1.30, a 10% increase
over the year-earlier period. The quarter was highlighted by
an after-tax gain of 5 cents per share associated with the
initial public offering of MasterCard Inc., of which the Bank
is a shareholder.

® [ncrease in ROE of 60 basis points to 20.2% versus 19.6% in
the corresponding guarter of 2005.

* Optimization of the capital structure through the issue of
$225 million of innovative instruments that qualify as Tier 1
capital.

Personal and Commercial

® Rise of 6.5% in total revenues at Personal and Commercial
due mainly to vigorous growth in loan volumes over the
third quarter of 2005. Insurance-related revenues increased
1580 from the third quarter of 2005.

¢ Return of the net interest margin to Q1 2006 levels, just shy
of where it stood in Q3 2005.

¢ Continued improvement in commercial loans and deposits
as a result of the propitious business climate in Quebec and
the ongoing development of specialized markets. Foreign
exchange revenues rose 25% from the year-earlier period.

¢ Signing of 2 cooperation agreement between the Bank and
UniCredit Group to assist commercial clients in their busi-
ness dealings with counterparties in Central and Eastemn
Furope, Russia, Ukraine and Turkey.

National Bank of Canada i Report ta Sharcholders I Third Quarter 2006
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/V
Wealth Management Financial Markets
® Growth of 16% in revenues from trust services and mutual ¢ Strong performance from Financial Markets despite reduced
funds owing to continued interest in private investment activity on secondary markets and fewer new securities
management services and long-term mutual funds. issues. The marked increase in gains on investment account
® Launch of six new tzx-effective Monthly Income Portfolios securities offset the decline in trading revenues.
to meet the needs of investors seeking regular income
streams.
Financial Objectives Objectives Results Resuits
3rd quarter Nine months
2006 2006
Growth in diluted earnings per share excluding specified items 500 — 10% 6% 8%
Return on common shareholders’ equity 16% — 18% 20.200 20.2%
Tier 1 capital ratio More than 8.5% 9.4% 9.4%
Dividend payout ratio 35% —~ 45% 37% 37%
{unaudited) For the quarter ended July 31 For the nine months ended July 31
(miltions of dollars) 2006 2005 % 2006 2005 O
Personal and Commercial 130 116 +12 355 333 +7
Wealth Management 34 29 +17 N4 85 +34
Financial Markets 60 54 +11 208 192 +8
Other (4) 8 - {26) 38 -
Net income TR0 207 +6 T 651 648 -
Less specified items:
® gain related to the MasterCard IPO e) - ) -
* net gain on the sale of shareholder management activities
{included in Wealth Management) - - (5) -
* gain on the disposal of investments in South America - - - (25)
* reduction in the general allowance for credit risk - - - (11)
Net income excluding specified items E :_2_0—7 +2 :_63_7 —__67_2_ +4
Diluted earnings per share $1.30 $1.18 +10 $3.83 $3.70 +4
Less specified items:
® gain related to the MasterCard IPO {0.05) - {0.05) -
* net gain on the sale of shareholder management activities
(included in Wealth Management] - - {0.03] -
* gain on the disposal of investments in South America - - - {0.15)
e reduction in the general allowance for credit risk - - - _(90_7)
Diluted earnings per share excluding specified items $1.25 $1.18 +6 $3.75 $3.48 +8
Return on common shareholders' equity —E% Eﬁ% E% E%

National Bank of Cunada | Report to Sharcholders l Third Quarter 2006



Caution regarding forward-looking statements

rom time to time, National Bank of Conada makes written and orol forward-
looking statements in this quarterly report, in other filings with Conadion requ-
lators or the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, in reports
to shareholders, in press releases and in other communications. All such state-
ments are made pursucnt to Canadion securities regulations and the provisions
of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These for-
ward-looking statements include, among others, statements with respect to the
economy, market changes, the achievement of strategic objectives, certain risks
os well as statements with respect to our beliefs, plans, expectations, estimates
and intentions. These forward-looking statements are typically identified by
the words "maoy," “could,” "should,” “would,” “suspect,” "outlook,” "believe,”
‘onticipate,” "estimate,” "expect,” “intend,” “plon,” and words and expressions
of simflar import.

By their very noture, such forward-looking statements require us to make
assumptions and involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general ond
specific. There is significant risk that express or implied projections contained
in such statements will not materiolize or will not be accurate. A number of
factors could cause actual future resuits, conditions, actions or events to differ
materially from the targets, expectations, estimates or intentions expressed

in the forward-looking statements. Such differences may be caused by factors,
many of which are beyond the Bonk's control, which include, but ore not limit-
ed to, the monagement of credit, market ond fiquidity risks; the strength of
the Canadion and United States economies and the economies of other coun-
tries in which the Bank conducts business, the impact of the movement of

the Canodion doflar relative to other currencies, particufarly the U.S. dollar;
the effects of changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rate
policies of the Bank of Canada; the effects of competition in the markets in

For mare information:

which the Bank operates; the impact of changes in the laws ond regulations
regulating financiat services and enforcement thereof (including banking,
insurance ond securities); judicial judgments and legal proceedings; the Bonk's
ability to obtain accurate and complete information from or on behalf of its
clients or counterparties; the Bank's ability to successtully realign its organiza-
tion, resources and processes, its ability to complete strategic acquisitions and
integrote them successfully; changes in the occounting policies and rethods
the Bank uses to report its financial condition, including uncertainties ossociot-
ed with critical accounting assumptions and estimates; operational and infra-
structure risks; other factors that may affect future resufts, including changes
in trade policies, timely development of new products and services, chonges in
estimates refloting to reserves, changes in tax lows, technological chonges,
unexpected changes in consumer spending and saving habits; natural disasters;
the possible impact on the business from public health emergencies, conflicts,
other international events and other developments, including those relating

to the war on terrorism; and the Bonk's success in anticipating ond managing
the foreqoing risks.

Additionat information about these factors con be found under "Risk Monogement,”
"Risk Management Framework,"” “Credit Risk Management” "Morket Risk
Management,” “Liguidity Risk Management,” “Operational Risk Management,”
and "Factors thot could affect future results” in the 2005 Annual Report.

wou

The Bank cautions that the foregoing fist of important foctors is not exhaustive.
Investors and others who base themselves on the Bank's forward-looking stote-
ments should carefully consider the above factors as well os the uncertainties
they represent and the risk they entail, The Bank also coutions readers not to
place undue relionce on these forward-looking statements.

Denis Dubé
Director

Public Refations
(514) 394-8644

Picrre Fitzgibbon

Senior Vice-President

Finance, Technology ard Corporate Affairs
(514} 394-8610

Hélene Baril
Director )
Investor Relations
{514) 394-0296
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operating Results

August 31, 2006 — The following text presents Management’s dis-
cussion and analysis of the Bank's financial condition and operat-
ing results. This analysis was prepared in accordence with
Multilateral instrument 51-102 respecting Continuous Disclosure
Obligations of the Canadian Securities Administrators and is based
on the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the
third quarter and the first nine months of fiscal 2006. Additional
information about National Bank of Canada, including the Annual
Information Form, can be obtained from the SEDAR website ot
wwwisedarcom and the Bank's website at www.noc.ca.

Analysis of Results

Consolidated Results

National Bank posted net income of $220 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2006, up 6% from $207 million for the same
period of 2005. Excluding the after-tax gain of $3 million from
the initial public offering by MasterCard Inc,, of which the Bank
is a shareholder, net income was $211 million. Net income for
the first nine months of fiscal 2006 was $651 million for the
Bank, $3 million more than for the same period of 2005. Had it
not been for specified items, i.e, the MasterCard PO, the net
gain on the sale of shareholder management activities,

the gain on the disposal of investments in South America and
the reduction in the genzral allowance for credit risk in the first
nine months of 2005 and 2006, net income would have been
$25 million or 4% higher period over period.

Diluted earnings per share amounted to $1.30 in the third
quarter of 2006, up 10% from $1.18 for the same period of 2005.
Excluding the gain from the MasterCard (PO in the third quarter of
2006, diluted earnings per share increased $0.07. Diluted earnings
per share in the first nine months of 2006 were $3.83, up 4% from
the first nine months of 2005. Excluding specified items, diluted
earnings per share grew 8% from period to period.

Total Revenues

The Bank's total revenues rose 5% in the third quarter of 2006 to
reach $933 million, as against $889 millicn in the third quarter of
2005. Personal and Commercial net interest income advanced
$19 million, or 5.8%, to $348 million for the quarter, owing to
higher volumes of both consumer loans and business loans and
deposits. Although the net interest margin narrowed compared
to the corresponding guarter of 2005, it widened between the
second and third quarter of 2006. The improvement in the spread
on deposits cancelled out the deterioration of credit product
spreads caused by competition.

Trading revenues, recorded in both net interest income and
other income, decreased by $40 million from the third guarter
of 2005 to the third quarter of 2006. The cecline was more
than offset by gains on investment account securities. These
gains amounted to $60 million in the third quarter of 2006,
with $13 million before tax coming from the MasterCard {PO,
and represented a substantial increase compared to the $7 mil-
lion lass in the third quarter of 2005.

Revenues from mutual funds and trust services climbed
$10 million from the third quarter of 2005 to reach $83 million
in the third quarter of 2006. Most of the increase stemmed
from the growth in private investment management and
mutual funds.

Aside from these items, the increase in other income was
attributable to commissions on loans and bankers acceptances,
foreign exchange revenues and other revenues, which together
rose $27 million. Securitization revenues, however, were $38
million this quarter, as against $48 million in the third quarter
of 2005. Financial market fees amounted to $139 mitlion in
the third quarter of 2006, compared to $158 million in the
year-earlier period, due to the slowdown in secondary market
activities and the smaller number of new issues.

Total revenues in the first nine months of 2006 grew 3%
to reach $2,861 million, versus $2,772 million in the correspon-
ding period of 2005. Personal and Commercial net interest
income advanced $47 million, or 4.9%, to $1,013 million in
the first nine months of 2008. Compared to the same period
of 2005, trading revenues fell $17 million to $246 million,
gains on securities rose $43 million to $130 million and rev-
enues from trust services and mutual funds grew $40 million
to $247 million. Similarly, other revenues, foreign exchange
revenues and lending fees increased $80 million. Securitization
revenues declined $26 million to $117 million and financial
market fees decreased $54 million to $462 million.

Operating Expenses

In the third quarter of 2008, operating expenses were $634 mil-
lion, up $18 million from the year-earlier period. Salaries and
staff benefits decreased $1 million to $354 million, with the
decrease in variable compensation offsetting the increase in
regular salaries and pension plan costs during the third quarter
of 2006. The ratio of sataries and staff benefits to operating
expenses fell 2% to 56%. Technology expenses were up $6 mil-
lion while professional fees increased $7 million to $40 million.
Changes in these expenses depend on the completion schedule
for technological development projects.

For the first nine months of 2006, operating expenses were
up $48 million, to $1,9071 million. This growth was due to
professional fees, which were up $12 million, salaries and staff
benefits, which rose $12 million, and technology expenses, which
increased $14 miltion.

Income Taxes

Income taxes for the third gquarter of 2006 totalied $58 mitlion,
representing an effective tax rate of 20.5%, compared to $46 mil-
lion and an effective tax rate of 17.8% for the vear-carlier period.
The tax rate for the third quarter of 2006 was affected by the
receipt of tax-exempt dividends, white in the third quarter of
2005 the tax rate was reduced by a transaction on the financial
markets. For the first nine months of 2006, income taxes
amounted to $233 million, for an effective tax rate of 25.7%%, as
against $219 million and an effective tax rate of 24.7% for the
corresponding period of 2005.

National Bank of Canada [ Report to Shareholders TThird Quarter 2006



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operating Results {cont)

Results by Segment

Personal and Commercial

Net income for the Personal and Commercial segment totalled
$130 million for the third quarter of 2006, up 12% from the
$116 million in net income earned in the corresponding quar-
ter of 2005. Total revenues for the segment climbed 7% to
$559 million. At Personal Banking, total revenues rose $22 mil-
lion, or 6%, owing chiefly to growth of $2.8 billion in average
asset volumes, attributable mainly to consumer loans, but also
ta residential mortgages and credit card advances. The increase
in revenues stemming from higher loan volumes was partly
offset by a narrowing of the spread on these products.
However, the decrease in the spread on credit products was
fully offset by the improvement in the spread on transaction
deposits that resulted from the rise in interest rates. Insurance
revenues jumped 15%, at an annualized rate. Total revenues for
Commercial Banking were up $12 million, or 7%, due to the
increase in net interest income attributable to higher volumes
of loans and acceptances and growth in foreign exchange rev-
enues. Although the spread on Commercial Banking credit
products in the third quarter of 2006 was slightly narrower
than in the third quarter of 2005, it was relatively steady com-
pared to the second quarter of 2006. The spread on deposits
cancelled out the decrease in the spread on credit products, at
an annualized rate.

Operating expenses for the Personal and Commercial seg-
ment were $339 million for the third quarter of 2008, as
against $324 million for the year-earlier period, for an increase
of 5%, which is lower than the growth in total revenues.

As a result, the efficiency ratio declined to 60.6% for the third
guarter of 2006 from 61.7% for the same quarter of 2005.
The segment’s provision for credit losses was decreased by

$2 million to $24 million due to a higher recovery rate

for Commercial Banking.

For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, the Personal and
Commercial segment posted net income of $355 mitlion, a 7%
increase over the $333 million recorded for the same period
of 2005. Total revenues for the segment rose 6% to $1,608
million on growth of $62 million or 6% at Personal Banking
and $26 million or 5% at Commercial Banking. The efficiency
ratio moved down to 61.3% in the first nine months of 2006
from 61.9% for the same period a year earlier.

Weaith Management

Net income for the Wealth Management segment totalled $34
million for the third quarter of 2006, compared to $29 million for
the corresponding quarter of 2005, for an increase of 179%. The
segment’s total revenues advanced 3% to $204 million for the
third quarter of 2006. A slowdown of activities on secondary mar-
kets affecting revenues for Indiviclual Investor Services at National
Bank Financial was offset by strong growth in trust and mutual
fund activities Operating expenses were up $2 million, or 1%, to

$152 million this quarter. The efficiency ratio dropped from 75.4%
in the third quarter of 2005 to 74.5% this quarter.

For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, net income for the
Wealth Management segment amounted to $114 million ver-
sus $85 million for the same period in 2005, for an increase of
34%. Total revenues for the segment rose 8% to $648 miltion
in the first nine months of fiscal 2006. Operating expenses
edged up barely $11 million or 2% to $472 million.

Financial Markets

For the quarter ended July 31, 2006, the Financial Markets seg-
ment posted net income of $60 million, up $6 million or 1%
from the year-earlier period. Total segment revenues rose $15
million to $238 million. Higher gains on securities were partly
offset by lower trading revenues. The reduction in new issues of
securities was evident in the $9 million drop in financial market
fees, while revenues from corporate banking services rose $3 mil-
lion, mainly because of an increase in the value of credit deriva-
tives. Operating expenses for the quarter were $143 million, up
$3 million from the year-earlier period. This modest increase was
due to a reduction in variable compensation. The provision for
credit Josses for the quarter stood at $1 miltion, compared to nit
in the corresponding quarter of 2005. For the first nine months
of fiscal 2006, the segment’s net income totalled $208 miltion,
up $16 million, or 8%, from the year-earlier period.

Financial Market Revenues

{taxable equivalent basis V) a3 a3
(millions of dollars) 2006 2005
Trading revenues
Equity 56 86
Interest rate 1 "
Commodity and foreign exchange ] 10
68 107
Financial market fees 57 66
Gains on securities 43 -
Banking services 34 25
Cther 36 25
Total 238 223
Other

The "Other” heading of segment results recorded a loss of $4
million faor the third quarter of 2006, compared to net income
of $8 million for the same period a vear earlier. The pre-tax
gain of $13 million related to the MasterCard PO partly offset
the impact of lower securitization revenues and net interest
income. Far the first nine months of fiscal 20086, the "Other”
heading recorded a loss of $26 million, as against a gain of $38
million for the corresponding period of 2005, when the Bank
recorded a $37 million pre-tax gain on the disposal of invest-
ments and reversed $17 million of the general allowance for
credit risk.

(1] Taxable equivalent basis is a calculation method that consists in grossing up certain tax-exempt income by the amount of income tax that otherwise would have
bren payable. The use of the taxable equivalent basis is not in accordance with GAAP. Securities regulators require that companies caution readers that measures
adjusted on a basis other than GAAP do not have standardized meanings under GAAP and may not be comparable to simitar measures used by other companies.
Please refer to Note 12 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the impact of the taxable equivalent adjustment to segment results.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operating Resuits (cont)

Cash Flows

Due to the nature of the Bank's business, most of its revenues and
expenses are cash items. Moreover, significant cash flow move-
ment can be observed in certain activities, such as trading activities,
and could impact several assets and liabilities such as trading
account securities, securities sold short or securities sold under
repurchase agreements.

For the third quarter of 20086, cash and cash equivalents
declined $0.4 billion compared to a decrease of $03 biltion for
the third quarter of 2005. As at July 31, 2008, cash and cash equiv-
alents totalled $9.2 biliion versus $8.0 billion the previous year.

Operating activities generated cash inflows of $1.2 billion for
the third quarter of 2006, mainly because of the decrease in trading
account securities. For the corresponding quarter of 2005, operat-
ing activities required cash of $1.6 billion because of the increase
of $3.4 billion for trading account securities, partly offset by $1.6
billion in inflows from other items.

Financing activities in the third quarter of 2006 required cash
of $2.3 billion, mostly in purchased funds, owing chiefly to fower
deposits. For the third quarter of 2005, the $1.7 billion increase in
obligations related to securities sold short and the $7.6 billion rise
in securities sold under repurchase agreements accounted for $8.2
billion in cash inflows from financing activities

Finally, investing activities generated cash of $0.7 billion in the
third quarter of 2006. In the corresponding quarter of 2005,
investing activities required cash of $7.5 billion due to the $2.3 bil-
lion increase in loans, the $3.7 billion rise in deposits with financial
institutions pledged as collateral and the $1.4 billion in securities
purchased under reverse repurchase agreements.

Risk Management

Credit Risk

In the third quarter of 2006, the Bank recorded specific provisions
for credit losses of $16 mitlion, an increase of $1 million over the
third quarter of 2005. As at July 31, 2006, gross impaired loans
stood at $214 million compared to $260 million at the end of fis-
cal 2005, This decline was primarily due to the successful recov-
ery of impaired business foans The ratio of gross impaired loans

to total adjusted capital and allowances was only 5.6%. As at
July 31, 2008, allowances for credit losses exceeded gross impaired
loans by $210 million versus $191 million as at October 31, 2005,

Market Risk - Trading Activities
The Value-at-Risk (VaR) simulation model is one of the main tools
used to manage market risk in trading activities. VaR is the maxi-
mum value of potential daily losses, measured at a 99% confidence
level, which means that actual losses are likely to exceed VaR only
one day out of 100. The computerized VaR calculation model is
based on two years of historical data. Market risk management is
discussed in more detail on page 61 of the 2005 Annual Report.
The table below, entitled "Trading Activities,” illustrates the
allocation of market risk by type of risk: interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity price and commadity.

Balance Sheet

As at July 31, 2008, the Bank had assets of $108.6 billion, up $1.0
billion versus $107.6 billion at the end of fiscal 2005. Loans and
acceptances were up $1.6 billion. In addition, cash, deposits with
financial institutions, securities and securities purchased under
reverse repurchase agreements increased $0.3 billion. The table
below presents the main portfolios.

Average monthly volumes July October July
{millions of dollars) 2006 2005 2005
Loans and acceptances”
Residential martgages 21313 20,728 20419
Consumer loans 9302 8,283 7832
Credit card receivables 1,741 1,707 1,680
SME loans 15210 14,182 14,858
Corporate loans 3614 3216 2,892
51,180 48,116 47,681
Deposits
Personal (balance) 29,178 26,385 25476
Off-balance sheet personal savings (balance) 67,580 63,262 63,776
Business 12,288 11,103 11,250

*including seruritized assets

Trading Activities (!
(millions of dollars)

Global VaR by risk category

For the quarter ended July 31, 2006

For the quarter ended April 30, 2006

Period end High Average Low Period end High Average Low
Interest rate (33) (7.6) (4.2) (2.4) (7.1 {82 (5.8) (3.6)
Foreign exchange {18) (1.9) 13 (08) [09) (22) {15) (06)
Equity (38) {42) {34) 23) 37) (67) (49) 37)
Commodity 1.0 (1.8) (1.1) (0.7) {14) (14) (09 {07)
Correlation effect @ 48 73 45 23 6.5 g5 60 32
Global VaR (4.9) {8.0) (5.5) (3.9) (6.6) (9.0) (7.1 (5.4)

& Amounts are presented on a pre-fax basis and represent ane-day VaR.
2 The correlation effect is the result of the diversification of types of risk.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operating Results (cont)

Residential martgage loans rose steadily during the third quar-
ter of 2006, reaching $21.3 billion as against $20.4 billion in the
year-earlier period. Consumer loans climbed 19% to $9.3 billion,
primarily driven by secured lines of credit. Higher consumer spend-
ing also accounted for the increase in credit card receivables, which
were up 3.8% over the previous vear to total $1.7 billion as at
July 31, 2006. Business foans continued to grow, with SME loans
up 2.4% year over vear, to $15.2 billion as at July 31, 2006.
Average volumes of corporate loans, for their part, rose $700 mil-
lion to $3.6 billion.

Personal deposits stood at $29.2 billion as at July 31,2006, up
$3.7 billion or 14.50% from the corresponding quarter of 2005,
chiefly owing to deposits distributed by Altamira. Off-balance
sheet personal savings administered by the Bank as at July 31,
2006 totafled $67.6 billion, an increase of $3.8 billion or 6% in a
year. The rise was primarily attributable to savings administered by
brokerage subsidiaries, with the semainder divided between private
investment management and mutuat funds

Accounting Policies and Estimates

The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples ("GAAP"). The reader is referred to Note 1 and Note 2a to the
2005 annual consolidated financial statements for more informa-
tion on the significant accounting policies used to prepare the
financial statements.

There have not been any changes to the Bank's significant
accounting palicies affecting the first nine months ended
July 31, 2006.

Details of significant future changes in accounting standards
are presented in Note 2 to the interim consolidated financial
statements.

The key assumptions and bases for estimates made by
Management in accordance with GAAP and their impact on
amounts presented in the interim consolidated financial state-
ments and notes remain essentially unchanged from those
described in the 2005 Annual Report.

Capital

Tier 1 and total capital ratios, according to the rules of the Bank
for International Settlements, stood at 9.4% and 12.4%, respec-
tively, as at July 31, 2006 versus 9.6% and 12.8% as at
October 31, 2005, including the $500 million debenture issued
on November 2, 2005. During the third quarter of 2008, the
Bank issued $225 million in innovative capital instruments.
During the first nine months of fiscal 2006, the Bank repur-
chased 4.5 million common shares for a total of $275 million as
part of its normal course issuer bids

Risk-weighted assets rose $2.4 billion or 5.2% since the start
of the fiscal year mainly because of higher loan volumes.

Dividends

At its meeting on August 31, 2006, the Board of Directors
declared regular dividends on the various classes and series of
preferred shares as well as a 50 cent dividend per common share,
payable on November 1, 2006 to shareholders of record on
September 28, 2006.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operating Results (cont.)

Additional Financial Information

{unaudited)
{millions of dolfars except per share amounts]
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
Qa3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Total Total
Total revenues $933 $949 $979 $931 $889 $900 5983 $892 $3,703 $3,545
Net income 220 214 17 207 207 202 239 182 855 725
Earnings per share
Basic 1.32 1.29 1.28 1.22 1.20 117 1.39 N 498 4.10
Oituted 1.30 1.26 1.26 1.20 1.18 118 137 109 490 405
Dividends per comman share 0.50 Q.48 0.48 Q.44 Q.44 0.42 0.42 0.38 1.72 142
Return on common
shareholders’ equity 20.2% 20.4% 19.9% 19.40% 19.6% 19.9% 23.6% 19.7% 20.7% 18.8%
Total assets $108,645 $111,183  $105276 $107,598 $110,593 $99917  $91,703  $88,497
Impaired loans, net 98 1 13 17 14 19 134 160
Per common share
Book value 26.57 25.77 25.72 25.39 24.70 24.19 23.97 22.87
Stock trading range
High 62.69 65.60 63.90 61.47 58.21 5524 49.75 48.78
Low 56.14 61.35 58.35 5587 5180 48,72 46.39 42.31
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Highlights
Quarter ended July 31 Nine months ended July 31
O %
{uraudited) 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
Operating results
[milions of dollars)
Total revenues $933 $889 5 $2,861 $2.772 3
Net income 220 207 6 651 648 -
Return on common shareholders' equity 20.2% 19.6% 20.2% 21.1%
Per common share
Earnings - basic $1.32 $1.20 10 $3.89 $3.76 3
Earnings - diluted 1.30 118 10 3.83 3.70 4
Dividends declared 0.50 0.44 14 1.46 1.28 14
Book value 26.57 24.70 8
Stock trading range
High 62.69 58.21 65.60 58.21
Low 56.14 51.60 56.14 46.39
Close 58.55 57.30 58.55 57.30
Financial position July 31 Octaber 31
{miltions of dolfars) 2006 2005
Total assets $108.645 $107.598 1
Loans and acceptances 51,943 50,360 3
Deposits 68,094 61,977 10
Subordinated debentures and shareholders' equity 6,301 5,699 "
Capital ratios - BIS
Tier 1 9.4% 9.6%
Total 12.4% 12.8% )
Impaired loans, net of specific and general allowances (210) (191}
as a % of loans and acceptances 0.4)% (0.4)%
Assets under administration/management 227,699 221,132
Total personal savings 96,758 89,647
Interest coverage 14.60 1271
Asset coverage 3.65 4.73
Other information
Number of employees 17,183 16,890 2
Number of branches in Canada 453 457 (1
Number of banking machines 800 788 2

1) Taking into account the issuance of $500 million of subordinated debentures on November 2, 2005.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Quarter ended

Nine months ended

{unaudited) July 31 April 30 July 31 July 31 July 31
{mitlions of dollars) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Interest income and dividends
Loans 687 627 538 1,928 1,553
Seeurities 236 260 189 700 550
Deposits with financial institutions 83 77 52 218 126
1,006 964 779 2,846 2,229
Interest expense
Deposits 433 447 330 1,319 843
Subordinated debentures 23 22 25 69 79
Other 142 194 116 471 270
598 663 471 1,859 1,192
Net interest income 408 301 308 987 1,037
Other income
Financial market fees 139 164 158 462 516
Deposit and payment service charges 53 52 51 155 149
Trading revenues {losses) (39) 102 94 229 180
Gains {losses) on investment account securities, net 60 28 (7} 130 87
Card service revenues 17 14 17 45 43
tending fees 69 63 66 194 181
Acceptances, letters of credit and quarantee 19 16 5 51 46
Securitization revenues 38 39 48 17 143
Foreign exchange revenues 25 24 20 72 56
Trust services and mutual funds 83 83 73 247 207
Other 61 63 46 172 121
525 648 581 1,874 1,735
Total revenues 933 949 889 2,861 2772
Pravision for credit losses 16 22 15 55 33
917 927 874 2,806 2739
Operating expenses
Salaries and staff benefits 354 358 355 1,091 1,079
Cecupancy 31 33 29 94 an
Technology 107 105 10 322 308
Communications 18 19 19 55 59
Professional fees 40 32 33 102 90
Other 84 76 79 237 227
634 623 516 1,901 1,853
Income befare income taxes and nen-controlting interest 283 304 258 905 886
Income taxes 58 82 46 233 219
225 222 212 672 667
Non-controlling interest 5 8 5 21 19
Net income 220 214 207 651 648
Dividends on preferred shares 6 5 8 16 21
Net income available to common shareholders 214 209 199 635 627
Number of common shares outstanding {thousands)
Average - basic 161,927 162,598 165,363 163,149 166,789
Average - diluted 164,512 165,552 167,849 165,903 169,310
£nd of period 161,918 161,382 165,096 161,918 165096
Earnings per comnton share (dollars)
Basic 1.32 1,28 1.20 3.89 3.76
Difuted 1.30 1.26 1.18 3.83 3.70
Dividends per common share idcliars) 0.50 0.48 0.4 1.46 1.28
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

{unaudited)
{miilions of dotlars)

ASSETS

Cash
Deposits with financial institutions

Securities
Investment account
Trading account

Securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements

Loans {Notes 4 and S}
Residential mortgage
Personal and credit card
Business and government

Allowance for credit losses

Other

Customers' liability under acceptances

Fair value of trading derivative financial instruments
Premises and eguipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Deposits

Personal

Business and government
Deposit-taking institutions

Deposit from NBC Capital Trust {Note &)

Other

Acceptances

Qbligations retated (o securities sold short
Securitics sold under repurchase agreements

Fair value of trading derivative financial instruments
COther liabilities

Subordinated debentures (Note 7)
Non-controlting interest

Sharcholders’ equity (Note 9)

Prefereed sharces

Common shares

Contributed surplus

Unrealized foreign currency translation adiustments
Retained earnings

July 31 Aprit 30 October 31 July 31
2006 2006 2008 2005
257 226 227 232
9,029 9,467 10,087 11,799
7,715 7671 6,716 6945
27,705 28,839 26,336 27,745
35,420 36,510 33,052 34,690
5,954 7,549 7,023 8,270
15,440 14,889 15,677 16,005
10,961 10,687 9,796 9,292
22,368 22,285 22,096 20,978
48,769 47,861 47,569 46,275
(424) (439) (451) (480)
48,345 47,422 47,118 45795
3,598 3,677 3,242 2842
2,438 2,599 2390 2,844
355 345 355 345
686 662 662 662
177 177 178 179
2,386 2,549 3,264 2,935
9,640 10,009 10,091 9,807
108,645 111,183 107,598 110,593
29,178 28,270 26,385 25,476
29,097 30,930 29,636 28,474
9,594 10,918 5956 7,043
225 - - -
68,094 70,118 61977 60,993
3,598 3677 3,242 2,842
14,864 15,094 15,504 16,776
7,620 7541 12815 14,526
1,623 1997 1,846 2,386
6,023 6,068 5928 6.593
33,728 32377 39,435 23,123
1.599 1599 1,102 1409
522 517 487 415
400 400 500 575
1,563 1,558 1565 1,557
19 17 13 17
(82) (77) (26) o)
2,802 2,674 2,645 2519
4,702 4572 4597 4653
108,645 111,183 107,558 110,593
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

{unaudited) Nine manths ended July 31
{millions of dollars) 2006 2005
Preferred shares at beginning 400 375
Issuance of preferred shares, Series 16 - 200
Preferred shares at end 400 575
Common shares at beginning 1,565 1,545
Issuance of comman shares

Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan A 9

Stock Option Plan 31 42
Repurchase of comman shares for canceliation (Note 9) (43) {39)
Impact of shares acquired or sold for trading purposes {1) -
Common shares at end 1,563 1,557
Contributed surplus at beginning 13 7
Stock option expense (Note 10} 6
Contributed surplus at end 19 12
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustments at beginning (26) (10}
Losses on foreign exchange oparations with a functional currency

other than the Canadian dollar, net of income taxes (56) -
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustments at end (82) (10)
Retained earnings at beginning 2,645 2,287
Net income 651 648
Impact of initial adogtion of AcG-15 "Consolidation of Variable interest Entities” - 6
Dividends

Preferred shares (18) (21)

Common shares (240} (214)
Premium paid on common shares repurchased for cancellation {Note 9) (232} (185)
Share issuance and other expenses, net of income taxes (6) (2)
Retained earnings at end 2,802 2,519
Shareholders' equity 4,702 4653
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiows

(unaudited)
{miltions of goilars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Met income
Adjustments for:
Provision for credit losses
Amartization of premises and equizment
Future income taxes
Translation adjustment on forcign currency subordinated debentures
Gains (losses) on sale of investment account securities, net
Gains on asset securitization and ather transfers of receivables, net
Stock option expense
Change in interest payable
Change in interest and dividends receivable
Change in income taxes payable

Change in net fair valuc amaunts of trading derivative financial instruments

Change in trading account securities
Change in other items

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in depesits

issuance of deposit from NBC Capital Trust

issuance of subordinated debentures

Repurchase of subordinated debentures

Jssuarnce of common shares

Issuance of preferred shares

Repurchase of common shares for cancellation
Dividends paid on common shares

Dividends paid on preferred shares

Change in obligations related to securities sold short
Change in securities sold under repurchase agreements
Change in other items

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in deposits with financial institutions pledged as collateral
Change in loans

Proceeds from securitization of assets and other transfers of receivables
Maturity of securitized assets

Purchases of investment account securities

Sales of investment account securities

Change in sceurities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements
Consolidation of asscts in accordance with AcG-15

Net acquisitions of premises and equipment

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
Cash and cash cauivalents at end

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash

Deposits with financial institutions
Less: Amount pledged as coliateral

Supplementary information
Irzterest paid
Income taxcs paid

Quarter ended July 31

Nine months ended july 31

2006 7005 2006 2005
220 207 651 648
16 15 55 33
16 15 49 45
5 (1) 10 (30}
- () 3) 1
(60) 7 (130) (87)
(19) {32) (62) (87)
2 2 6 5
(41) 50 57 62
9 12 63 (12)
27 (18) 95 10
(213) (54) (271) (46)
1,134 (3,398) (1.369) (7,184}
110 1,632 807 270
1,206 {1,574) (42) {6.372)
(2.249) (753) 5.892 7,561
225 - 225 -
- - 500 350
- (350} - {350}
18 41 51
- - - 200
- (75) 275) {224)
{79) - (231) (205)
(5) 7 {16) (19)
(230) 1,688 (640) 6,572
79 7,641 (5,295) 6,344
(5) 9 (56) {4)
(2,259) 8,153 145 20,276
34 (3,680} 3,974 (3.619)
(1,263) (2,336) (2,784) (5,645)
324 278 1,502 2,02
- [206) - {708)
{44,346) ,228)  (101,0m) {21,233)
44,368 9,089 100,203 21,858
1,595 (1,427) 1,069 (3,774)
(6) - (1) {132)
(26) (17) (49) (39)
630 [7.525) 2,843 {11,259)
(373) (948) 2,946 2,635
9,595 3914 6,276 5333
9,222 7968 9,222 7,568
257 232 257 232
9,029 1,799 9,029 11,799
(64) [4,063) (64) (4,063]
9,222 7.968 9,222 7,968
639 401 1.802 1,130
28 79 176 174
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited) (millions of dollars)

These unaudited interim consolidated financiol statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2005.
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to comply with the presentation adopted in fiscal 2006.

1. Significant Accounting Folicies

These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ["GAAPY)
and the accounting policies described in the Bank's most recent Annual Report for the year ended October 31, 2005.

2. Recent Accounting Standards Pending Adoption

Financial Instruments ~ Recognition and Measurement, Hedges and Comprehensive Income
In fanuary 2005, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) issued three new standards: “Financial Instruments - Recogrition and Measurement,” “Hedges” and
“‘Comprehensive income.” The main consequences of implementing these standards are described below.

Al financial assets and liabilities will be carried at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet, except for items classified in the following categories, which will be carried at amortized
cost: foans and receivables, held-te-maturity securities and financial liabilities not held for trading. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities that are held
for trading will be recorded in the Consofidated Statement of Income. Unrealized gains and losses on firiancial assets that are available for sale will be reported in Other comprehensive
income until realized, at which time they will be recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Incame. Al derivatives, including embedded derivatives that must be accounted for separately,
will be recorded at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

For fair value hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivatives and corresponding changes in fair value of the hedged items attributed to the risk being hedged will be recognized in
the Consolidated Statement of Income. For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the changes in the fair values of the derivative instruments will be recorded in Other comprehensive
income until the hedged items are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Other comprehensive income, which comprises the above items as well as unrealized exchange gains and losses on self-sustaining foreign operations {net of hedging activities), will be
included as a separate component of the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity. A new statement entitled "Statement of Comprehensive income” will be added
to the Bank's consalidated financial statements.

These new standards will apply to the Bank effective November 1, 2006. The impact of implementing these new standards on the Bank's consolidated financial statements cannot yet
be determined as it is dependent cn the Bank's unsettled positions and hedging strategies and on market volatility at the time of transition.

3. Transfers of Receivables

Securitization transactions

CMHC-quoranteed mortgage foans and credit card recenvables
The Bank securitizes guaranteed residential mortgage loans through the creation of mortgage-backed securities The Bank also sells credit card receivables on a revolving basis to a trust.
The pre-tax gain or loss from securitization transactions, net of transaction fees, is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of income under “Securitization revenues.”

Securitization aperations for the quarter ended: July 31, 2006 April 30, 2006 July 31, 2005

Morigage Mortgage Morigage

i0ans ioans inans

Net cash proceeds 324 618 335

Retained interests 7 17 6

Retained servicing liabifity 2) {4) {2)

329 631 349

Receivables securitized and sold 328 626 336

Gain before income taxes, net of transaction fees 1 5 13

Mortgage-backed securities created and retained included in the ftem "Securities - investment account” 43 278 -
Securitization operations for the nine months ended: July 31, 2006 July 31,2005

Mortgage Ninrigane Credit card

cans fogns receiablos
Net cash proceeds 1,361 1,135 785
Retained interests 37 54 21
Retained servicing liabiity (8 {7 {4

1,390 1,182 812

Receivables securitized and sold 1,379 {RES 300
Gain before income taxes, et of transaction fees 1 41 12
Mortgage-backed securities created and retained included in the item "Securities - investmernt account” 596 140 —

The key assumptions used to measure the fair value of retained interests at the securitization date for transactions carried out during the quarter ended July 31, 2006 were as foliovss:

Guaranteed mortgage loans - Key assumptions 2006
Weighted average term {months) 29.4
Prepayment rate 20.0%

€38 spread, net of credit losses 0.9%
Expected credit losses -
Discount rate 4.6%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [cont)
(unaudited) (millions of dollars)

3. Transfers of Receivables (cont)

Other transfers

The Bank selis insured and urinsured mortgage loans to a mutual fund administrated by the Bank The pre-tax gain or loss is carried in the Cansolidated Statement of Income urider “Other
income - Other." The following table summanzes the other transfers carried out by the Bank:

Nine months ended
July 31, 2006 July 31, 2005
Net cash proceeds 14 294
Insured and uninsured mortgage loans sald 140 296
Gain (loss) before income taxes 1 2)

4. Loans and Impaired Loans

Impaired loans

Gross Specific Net
amount Gross allowances balance
July 31, 2006
Residential mortgage 15,440 13 2 1
Personal and credit card 10,961 36 17 19
Business and government 22,368 165 97 68
48,769 214 16 98
General allowance {308)
Impaired loans, net of specific and general allowances 1210)
October 31, 2005
Residential mortgage 15,677 10 2 g
Personal and credit card 9,796 35 18 17
Business and government 22,096 215 123 92
47,569 260 143 17
General allowance {308)
Impaired loans, net of specific and general allowances (191}

{1) The general allowance for credit risk was created taking into account the Bank's credit in its entirety.

5. Allowance for Credit Losses

The changes made to allowances are as follows:

Allocated Unallocated Nine months cnded
Specific general general July 31 July 31
allowances atlowance allowance 2006 2005
Allowances at beginning 143 241 67 451 578
Provision for credit losses 55 {8) 6 55 33
Write-offs (129) - - (129) (171)
Recoveries 47 - - 47 40
Allgwarces atand 116 235 73 424 480

6. Deposit from NBC Capital Trust

Or: Jursc 15, 2006, MBC Capital Trust (the Trust"), an open-end trust established under the laws of the Province of Ontario, issued 225000 transferable non-voting trust units catled Trust Capital
Securities - Series 1, or NEC CapS-Series 1. The gross praceeds from the offering of $225 million waore used by the lrust to acquire a deposit note from the Bank Since the Bank does riot consali-
e the frust, the deposit nots is presentes on the consolidated balance shoet of the Bank undoer "Deposits?

The depasit rate bears interest at a fixed annual rate of 5.320% payable semi-arnually in arrears up 10 Jure 30, 2016 and thercafter at a fived annual rate cqual 1o the Bankers' Acceptarce Rate
1.5000. [he deposit note, which will mature on June 30, 2066, may be ed, on and after June 30, 2001, at the ophon of the Bank, without the consent of the Trust, subject to prior
wariten rones and prior approval of the Superintendert of Rnancal iastitutions, or upon the oecurence of cortain regulatory or tix ovents as defined. I the Bank rodeems the doprsit rote,

in whale or i part, the rustwill be reguircd (o redeem a conesponiaing ameunt of NSC CapS-Serics 1.

Each $1,000 of principal amourt of e deprsit note is convertible at any sme irto 40 Frst Preforrad Stares Serics 17 of the Bank at the option of the Trust The Trust will exercisc this conversion
fight i dreurmstances in which holders of NBC CapS-Series 1 exertise thelr exchange Aghts,

Failure by the Bank to make payment or to satisfy its other abligations urder the deposit note will rot entitle the Trust to scedlerate payment of the deposit rote
The Jrustis a vanable intorest entity under Acceunting Guideling Mo 15 "Consofidation of Varable Interest Entitiog” {A4cG - 15), Although, the Bank ovens the cauity and voring ool of the

frisst, the Bank dues not consolidate the Trust because the Bank is ot the primary bengticiary; therefore, NBC CapS-Series 1 issucd by the Trust are not reported on the Sank's Consolidated
Balance Sheet, but the deposit note is reparted under "Deposits'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
{unaudited) (millions of dollars)

6. Deposit from NBC Capital Trust [cont)

The non-cumilative cash distribution per NBC CapS-Series 1 will be $26.845 {representing an annual ield of 532%% of the $1,000 iritial issue price) paid by the Trust semi-annually from
December 31, 2006 to and includir.g June 30, 2016, and thereafter, will be determined by multiplying $1,000 by ane-half of the sum of the applicable Bankers' Acceptance Rate plus 1.50%%.
Mo cash distributions wilt be payable by the Trust on NBC CapS-Serics 1 if the Bank fails to declare regular dividends on its preferred shares, or if no preferred shares are then outstanding,
on its outstanding common shares. I this case, the net distributable funds of the Trust will be paid to the Bank as holder of the Special Trust Securities, representing the residual interest in
the Trust. Should the Trust fail to pay the semi-annual distributions in full on the NBC CapS-Series 1, the Bank will not declare dividends on any of its preferred shares and common shares
for a specified period of time. The NBC CapS-Series 1 are not redeemable at the option of the halder.

On or after Junc 30, 2011, the Trust may, atits option, redeem the NSC CapS-Series 1, inwhole or in part, without the consent of the holders, subjeet to prior written rotice and prior approval
of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions or upon the nccurrence of certain regulatory or tax events as defined.

Holders of NBC CapS-Serics 1 may surrender at any time, subject to prior notice, cach NBC CapS-Series 1 for 40 First Preferred Shares Series 17 of the Bank The Banks First Preferred Shares
Series 17 pay semi-annual non-cumulative cash dividends as and when declared by the Board of Directars and will be redeemable at the option of the Bank, with the prior approval of
the Superintendent of financial Institutions, on or after Jure 30, 2011, but not at the option of the holders This exchange right will be effected through the conversion by the Trust of
the corresponding amount of the deposit note of the Bank. The NBC CapS-Series 1 exchanged for the Bank's First Prefiesred Shares Series 17 will be cancelled by the Trust.

Each NBC CapS-Series 1 will be exchanged automatically, without the consent of the holders, for 40 First Preferred Shares Series 18 of the Bank, upan the accurrence of any one of the
following events: {i) proceedings are commenced for the winding-up of the Bank; (i) the Superintendent of Financial Institutions takes control of the Bank; (i) the Bank has a Tier 1 capital
ratio of less than 5% or a total capital ratio of less than 8%; or (iv) the Superintendent of Financial Institutions has directed the Bank to increase its capital or to provide additional liquidity
and the Bank elects such automatic exchange or the Bank fails to comply with such direction to the satisfaction of the Superintendent. The Bank's First Preferred Shares Series 18 pay
semi-annual non-cumulative cast: dividends and will be redeemable at the option of the Bank, with the prior approval of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, on or after June 30,
2011, but not at the option of the holders On an automatic exchange, the Bank will hold aft outstarding trust capital securities of the Trust, the main asset of which is the deposit note.

As at July 31, 2006, for regulatory capital purposes $225 million of NBC CapS-Series 1 qualify as Tier 1 capital.

7. Subordinated Debentures

On November 2, 2005, the Bank issued $500 million of subordinated debentures that mature in 2020. Interest at the annual rate of 4.70% is payable semi-annually on May 2
and November 2 of cach year.

8. Pension and Other Employee Future Benefits

Quarter ended Nine months ended
July 31 April 30 July 31 July 31 July 31
2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Pension benefit expense 15 15 14 44 38
Other employee future benefit expense 2 2 2 7 4
9. Capital Stock
Shares gutstanding and dividends as at July 31, 2006 Shares Dividends
Number of shares $ $ per share
First preferred shares
Series 15 8,000,000 200 9 0.3656
Series 16 8,000,000 200 7 0.3031
16,000,000 400 16
Common shares 161,917,623 1,563 240 0.5000
1,963 256

Repurchase of common shares
On January 23, 2006, the Bank commenced a narmal course issuer kid to repurchase, for cancellation, up to 8,278,000 comiman shares over a 12-month penad ending ro later
than January 22, 2007. Repurchases are made on the apen market at market prices through the facilitics of the Toronto Stock Exchange. Premiums paid ahbove the average
ook value of the comman shares are charged to retained earmings. As at July 31, 2006, the Bark had repurchased 2,700,820 common shares at a cost of $189 million, whi
reduced comimon share capital by $26 million and retained earnings by $143 million.

On January 13, 2005, the Bank commenced a normal course issuer bid to repurchase, for ation, up Lo 8,400,000 comimon shares over a 12-month perind ended
January 12, 2006, Repurchuses are made on the open market at market prices through the facilities of the Toronto Stock Lxchange. Premiums paid above the average hook
value of the common shares are charged to retained earnings. During the rine menths ended July 31, 2006, the Bank repurchased 1,771,600 commaon shares at a cost of $306
million, which reduced comman share capital by $17 mitlion and retaired camings by $89 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
{unaudited) (millions of doilars)

10. Stock-Based Compensation
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Stock Option Plan
Curing the nine months ended July 31, 2006, the Bank awarded 943,200 stack options (1,468,260 in 2005) at a fair value of $12.81 ($9.70 in 2005).

As at July 37, 2006, a total of 5,481,517 stock options were outstanding.

The fair value of these options was estimated, on the award date, using the Black-Schales valuation model. The following assumptions were used:

Nine months ended

July 31, 2006 July 31, 2005
Risk-free interest rate 4.18 % 405%
Expected life of the options 6 years 6 years
Expected volatility 24 9% 27 %
Expected dividend yield 5% 500
The fallowing table presents the compensation expense recorded for the stock options:
Quarter ended Nine manths ended
July 31, 2006 April 30, 2006 July 31, 2005 July 31, 2006 July 31,2005
Bank stock options 2 2 2 6 5

Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) Plian
During the rine months ended July 31, 2006, the Bank awarded 5,400 SARs As at July 31, 2006, a total of 316850 SARs were outstanding.

Deferred Stock Unit (DSU) Plan for Officers
Durirg the nine months ended July 31, 2005, the Bark awarded 32911 DSUs. As at July 31, 2006, a total of 125,569 DSUs for officers were outstanding.

Restricted Stock Unit Plan (RSU) ‘
During the nine months ended July 31, 2006, the Bank awarded 117,655 RSUs (76,582 during the quarter ended July 31, 20086). As at July 31, 2006, a total of 162,147 RSUs were outstanding.

11. Acquisition - Credigy Ltd.

On July 26, 2008, a subsidiary of the Bank acquired a 68% interest in Credigy Ltd, a privately held purchaser of and service-provider for distressed receivables of, mainly, US. consumers,
for a total cash consideration of $59.1 million, including direct acquisition costs.

The assets acquired totalied approximately $105.2 million while the liabilities assumed, including non-contralling interest, were about $700 million. The excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair value of net assets of $23.9 million was recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as goodwill. This amount could be adjusted once the Bank has completed
its vatuation of the assets acquired and Jiasbiities assumed.

An additional cash corsideration of up to $18.7 million could be paid over the next three years, provided certain profitability targets are achieved and, if applicable, would be recogrized
45 goodwill.

Credigy's results have been recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income as of the July 26, 2006 acquisition date
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12. Segment Disclosures

Quarter ended July 31

Personal and Wealth Financial
Commercial Management Markets Other Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net interest income [V 348 329 30 25 111 19 (81) {65) 408 308
Cther income 21 198 174 174 127 204 13 7 525 581
Total revenucs 559 525 204 199 238 223 (68) {58) 933 289
Operating expenses 339 324 152 150 143 140 - 2 634 616
Contribution 220 201 52 49 95 83 (68) (60} 299 273
Provision for credit losses 24 26 - - 1 - (9) (1) 16 15
Income before income taxes and
non-controlling interest 196 175 52 49 94 83 (59) (49) 283 258
income taxes 66 59 17 19 34 29 (59) (61) 58 46
Non-controlling intcrest - - 1 1 - - 4 4 5 5
Net income [net loss) 130 116 34 29 60 54 (4) 8 220 207
Average assets 47,820 44576 874 870 67,860 55456  (9,877)  (5458) 106,677 95444
Nine months ended July 31
Personal and Wealth Financial
Commercial Management Markets Other Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net interest income @ 1,013 966 89 73 113 180 (228) 182) 987 1,037
Other income 595 554 559 525 649 562 71 94 1,874 1,735
Total revenues 1,608 1,520 648 598 762 742 (157) (88) 2,861 2,772
Operating expenses 985 941 472 461 436 444 8 7 1,901 1,853
Caontribution 623 579 176 137 326 298 (165) (95) 960 919
Provision for credit tosses 88 79 - - 3 4 (36) {50) 55 33
Income before income taxes and
non-controlling intcrest 535 500 176 137 323 284 (129) (45) 905 886
Income taxes @ 180 167 58 49 m 101 (116) (98) 233 219
Non-controlling interest - - 4 3 4 1 13 15 21 19
Net income {net lass) 355 333 114 85 208 192 (26) 38 651 548
Average assets 47,049 43,433 920 881 66,374 49,407 (9,127) {5524] 105,216 88,197
Personal and Commercial Wealth Management Financial Markets Other

The Personal and Commercial segment
comprises the branch netwaork, intermediary
services, credit cartds, nsurance, commerciai
banking services and real estate.

The Weaith Management segment
comprises fulf-service retail brokerage,
direct hrokerage, mutual funds, trust
services and portfolio management,

Taxable equivalent

(1) The accounting policies are the same as those described in
the note on accounting palicics {Note 1), with the exception
of the net interest incame, other incame and incame taxes of
the operating segments, which are presented on a taxabie
cquivalent basis Taxable equivaten: basisis a caleulali
method that consists in grossing up Seriain tax-exempt

income by the amount of income tax that otherwise would
have been payable. For all of the operating segiments, net
interest income was grossed up by $23 million {$24 million in
2005} and other income by $32 m
An equal amount was added o income taes. The impact of
ihess adjustments is reversed under the "Cther” heading,

The Financial Markets segment encompasses
corporate financing and lending, treasury
operations, including asset and habitity
management for the Bank, and corporate
brokerage.

on {536 miilion in 2005).

eQi.

The Other heading comprises securitization
aperations, ceriain non-recurring items
and the unallocaied portion of centralized
services.

{2) For the nine months ended July 31, 2006, net interest
income was grossed up by SBO million ($63 rwillion in
and other income by $46 million {S52 miliion in 2005
alent amount was added to income taxes The
these increases is reversed under the "Other” heading.

2005)
An
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Synchronized monetary tightening

Helped by the performance of the emerging Asian economies
and the acceleration of the economies of Europe and Japan, the
global economy will once again post solid GDP growth in 2006
{around 4.5%). The current synchronized liquidity withdrawal by
the central banks is likely to lead to a deceleration in the world
economy starting in 2007,

Since the beginning of 2006, the global economy has continued
to expand at a vigorous pace. it is well on its way to a third con-
secutive year of GDP growth in excess of 4%, its best run in over
30 years. The current expansion is more evenly distributed than in
previous years, when the only engines the global economy could
count on were the US. and China. The corrosive deflation that
plagued Japan for more than 10 years is finally a thing of the past,
and the economic recovery now appears sustainable. Europe's
economy has likewise pulled out of its slumber. In both cases,
interest rates need o be adjusted upward.

in China, authorities are eager to temper economic growth.
Eisewhere in the world, central banks are focused on rising inflation
expectations in the wake of mounting energy and raw material
prices. With Canada and the United States having already ratcheted
up interest rates, synchronized ronetary tightening is under way
for the first time in almost 15 years. As a result, global economic
growth is expected to slow to 4.1% in 2007, a level still well above
the long-term average.

The US. economy seems 1o be in transition. Reacting to two years
of successive hikes in the key interest rate and the erosion of
purchasing power by higher encrgy prices, households are becom-
ing less confident. However, business investment is holding firm
and, more importantly, exports are accelerating in tandem with
the economic turnaround in ovarseas countries. All things consid-
ered, U.S. economic growth shculd coo! to a pace consistent with
its potential GDP, thereby enabling the country to bypass a signifi-
cant rate increase.

Economic Commentary
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Canada is currently in a class apart. Its fundamentals are among
the best in 50 years Rich in natural resources, the country is
benefitting from skyrocketing raw material prices by racking up
record trade surpluses. These improved terms of trade are reflected
in a ratio of profits to GDP that is at a 50-year high and an
unemployment rate that is at a 30-year low. Canada continues

to be the only G7 country that has managed to balance its budget
for several years running. With the stars so favourably aligned, it

is little wonder that the Canadian dollar is popular with foreign
investors. The strong loonie is helping to keep inflation low and
interest rates below U.S. levels. The Canadian economy should
grow by 3.0% in 2006 and 2.7% in 2007.

We feel that one of the main economic and political challenges
that lies ahead for Canada is the redistribution of wealth among
Canadians in order to reduce regional disparities resulting from

an uneven distribution of resources. For example, economic
growth in Quebec has been modest since 2003, in spite of strong
domestic demand, The problem, really, is the narrowing of the
trade balance, which was proportionally higher in Quebec than in
any other province between 2003 and 2005. Of course, the robust
Canadian dollar is also a contributing factor.

Since 2002, financial markets have provided investors with solid
retumns due to an unprecedented liquidity injection by the central
banks. However, with monetary authorities on high alert against
a resurgence of inflation, capital markets have become more
volatile. The comments of the chairman of the Federal Reserve,
which were considered to be reassuring, assume that businesses
will have to eat into their profit margins to caver the costs result-
ing from higher raw material prices and salaries. Qobviously, earn-
ings growth could be well below expectations. In Canada, because
of the heavy weighting of resource stocks, the SEP/TSX is extremely
dependent on the climate of speculation surrounding raw material
prices. As usual, the investor must maintain a disciplined approach.
For long-term investing, the key to success continues to be
diversification among asset classes.

For ¢ mare detniled analysis and up-to-date information on the state of the global and
faeal ceonomy, we invite you to consult the following National Bank economic publications:

Economic and Financial Qutlook: A compleie survey of the cconaaic outlook
i North America and abroad, the provingial cconomics, and financial markets
and seetars, Published twice a year.

Monthly Economic Monitor: Ar overview of recent cconomic developments in Canada,
the United States and around the world, with an update of our economic forecast,

Economic Weekly: A weekly analysis of current coonomic issues along with the
fatest figures for sciccted indicators of foreign, North American and provincial
ccanomies, and conimodity prices.

These pubiications are avaiable on the Bank's website ot www.nbe.ca under Economic
Analysis in the menu on the right-hand side of the screen.

www.nbc.ca
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National Bank of Canada
Information for Shareholders and investors

Head Office

600 de La Gauchetiére West
Montreal, Quebec, Canada
H3B 412

www.nbc.ca

Investor Relations

Financial analysts and investors who want to obtain financial information
on the Bank are asked to contact the Investor Relations Department.

600 de La Gauchetiére West, 7th FHloor

Montreal, Quebec H3B 412

Telephone: (514) 334-0296

Toli free: 1-800-517-5455

Fax: (514) 394-6196

E-mail: investorrelations@nbc.ca

Website: www.nbe.cafinvestorrelations

Public Relations

600 de La Gauchetiére West, 10th Floor
Montreal, Quebec H3B 412

Telephone: (514) 394-8644

Fax: (514] 394-6258

Website: www.nbe.ca
General inquiries: telnat@nbc.ca

Next quarterly report publication date for fiscal 2005-2006
Fourth quarter: November 30, 2006

DISCLOSURE OF 3rd QUARTER 2006 RESULTS

Conference call:

* A conference calf for analysts and institutional investors will be heid on
August 31, 2006 at 1:00 p.m. EDT.

»  Access by teleghone in listan-only mode: 1-866-898-9626
or (416) 340-2216

s Arecording of the conference call can be heard until September 7, 2006
by calling 1-800-408-3053 or (416) 695-5800. The access cade is 31944194,

Webcast:
s The conference call wilf be webcast live at www.nbc.cafinvestorrelations.
o Avecording of the webcast will also be available on the Intemet after the call

Financial Documents

¢ The quarterly financial statements are available at all times on National Bank's
website at www.nbe.cafinvestorrelations.

* The Report to Shareholders, Supplementary Financiat information and a slide
presentation will be available on the Investor Relations page of National
Bank's website shortly before the start of the conference call.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For information about stock transfers, address changes, dividends, lost certificates,
tax forms and estate transfers, shareholders are requested to contact the transfer
agent, Computershare Trust Company of Canada, at the address or telephone
numbers below.

Computershare Trust Company of Canada
Share Ownership Management

1100 University, 12th Floor

Montreal, Quebec H3B 2G7

Telephone: {514) 871-7171

1-800-341-1418

Fax: (514) 871-7442

Email: clientele@tbn.bne.ca

Direct Deposit Service for Dividends

Shareholders may efect to have their dividend payments deposited directly via
electronic funds transfer to their bank account at any financial institution that

is a member of the Canadian Payments Association. To da so, they must send

a written request to the Transfer Agent, Computershare Trust Company of Canada.

Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan

National Bank offers holders of its common shares a Dividend Reinvestment
and Share Purchase Plan through which they can invest in commaon shares

of the Bank without paying a commission or administration fee. Participants

in the Plan may acquire shares by reinvesting cash dividends paid on shares
they hold or by making optional cash payments of at least $500 per payment,
to a maximum of $5,000 per quarter. For additional information, please cantact
the Registrar, Computershare Trust Company of Canada, at 1-800-341-1419

or (5141 871-7171.

www.nbe.ca/investorrelations

Norional Bank of Coroda is committed to pratecting ihe environmont.

certified arcessed 100Y%

chiorine-free

recyclatie
post-consumer

ofloss

periranent biv gias
archivai eneray

National Bank of Canada l Report to Sharcholders I Third Quarter 2006




File No. 82-3764

NATIONAL
BANK
OF CANADA

I, PIERRE FITZGIBBON, Senior Vice-President Finance, Technology and Corporate Affairs of
National Bank of Canada, certify that :

1. I have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109

Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of NATIONAL BANK OF
CANADA (the issuer) for the interim period ending July 31, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement
not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings;

4. NATIONAL BANK OF CANADA’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared.

August 29, 2006

(signed) Pierre Fitzgibbon

PIERRE FITZGIBBON

Senior Vice-President Finance, Technology and Corporate Affairs
National Bank of Canada
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NATIONAL
BANK
OF CANADA

FORM 52-109F2 — CERTIFICATION OF INTE FILINGS

I, REAL RAYMOND, President and Chief Executive Officer of National Bank of Canada, certify
that :

1. I have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109

Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of NATIONAL BANK OF
CANADA (the issuer) for the interim period ending July 31, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement
not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings;

4. NATIONAL BANK OF CANADA’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared.

August 29, 2006

(signed) Réal Raymond

REAL RAYMOND
President and Chief Executive Officer
National Bank of Canada
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Caution regarding forward-locking statements

From time to time, National Bank of Canada makes written and oral forward-looking statements in
this quarterly report, in other filings with Canadian regulators or the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission, in reports to shareholders, in press releases and in other communications.
All such statements are made pursuant to Canadian securities regulations and the provisions of the
United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward looking statements
include, among others, statements with respect to the economy, market changes, the achievement
of strategic objectives, certain risks as well as statements with respect to our beliefs, plans,
expectations, estimates and intentions. These forward-looking statements are typically identified by
the words “may,” “could,” “should,” “would,” “suspect,” “outlook,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “intend,” “plan,” and words and expressions of similar import.

By their very nature, such forward-looking statements require us to make assumptions and involve
inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific. There is significant risk that express or
implied projections contained in such statements will not materialize or will not be accurate. A
number of factors could cause actual future results, conditions, actions or events to differ materially
from the targets, expectations, estimates or intentions expressed in the forward-looking statements.
Such differences may be caused by factors, many of which are beyond the Bank’s control, which
include, but are not limited to, the management of credit, market and liquidity risks; the strength of
the Canadian and United States economies and the economies of ather countries in which the Bank
conducts business; the impact of the movement of the Canadian dollar relative to other currencies,
particularly the U.S. dollar; the effects of changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest
rate policies of the Bank of Canada; the effects of competition in the markets in which the Bank
operates; the impact of changes in the laws and regulations regulating financial services and
enforcement thereof (including banking, insurance and securities); judicial judgments and legal
proceedings; the Bank's ability to obtain accurate and complete information from or on behalf of its
clients or counterparties; the Bank’s ability to successfully realign its organization, resources and
processes; its ability to complete strategic acquisitions and integrate them successfully; changes in
the accounting policies and methods the Bank uses to report its financial condition, including
uncertainties associated with critical accounting assumptions and estimates; operational and
infrastructure risks; other factors that may affect future results, including changes in trade policies,
timely development of new products and services, changes in estimates relating to reserves,
changes in tax laws, technological changes, unexpected changes in consumer spending and saving
habits; natural disasters; the possible impact on the business from public health emergencies,
conflicts, other international events and other developments, including those relating to the war on
terrorism; and the Bank’s success in anticipating and managing the foregoing risks.

Additional information about these factors can be found under “Risk Management,” “Risk
Management Framework,” “Credit Risk Management,” “Market Risk Management,” “Liquidity Risk
Management,” “Operational Risk Management,” and “Factors that could affect future results” in the
2005 Annual Report.

The Bank cautions that the foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive. Investors and others
who base themselves on the Bank's forward-locking statements should carefuity consider the above
factors as well as the uncertainties they represent and the risk they entail. The Bank also cautions
readers not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

August 31, 2006 — The following text presents Management's discussion and analysis of the Bank’s
financial condition and operating results. This analysis was prepared in accordance with Multilateral
Instrument 51-102 respecting Continuous Disclosure Obligations of the Canadian Securities
Administrators and is based on the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the third
quarter and the first nine months of fiscal 2006. Additional information about National Bank of
Canada, including the Annual Information Form, can be obtained from the SEDAR website at
www.sedar.com and the Bank’s website at www.nbc.ca.

Analysis of Results

Consolidated Results

National Bank pcsted net income of $220 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2006, up 6% from $207
million for the same period of 2005. Excluding the after-tax gain of $9 million from the initial public
offering by MasterCard Inc., of which the Bank is a shareholder, net income was $211 million. Net
income for the first nine months of fiscal 2006 was $651 million for the Bank,

$3 million more than for the same period of 2005. Had it not been for specified items, i.e., the
MasterCard IPO, the net gain on the sale of shareholder management activities, the gain on the
disposal of investments in South America and the reduction in the general allowance for credit risk in
the first nine months of 2005 and 2006, net income would have been $25 million or 4% higher period
over period.

Diluted earnings per share amounted to $1.30 in the third quarter of 2006, up 10% from $1.18 for the
same period of 2005. Excluding the gain from the MasterCard IPO in the third quarter of 20086,
diluted earnings per share increased $0.07. Diluted earnings per share in the first nine months of
2006 were $3.83, up 4% from the first nine months of 2005. Excluding specified items, diluted
earnings per share grew 8% from period to period.

Total Revenues

The Bank’s total revenues rose 5% in the third quarter of 2006 to reach $933 million, as against
$889 million in the third quarter of 2005. Personal and Commercial net interest income advanced
$19 million, or 5.6%, to $348 million for the quarter, owing to higher volumes of both consumer loans
and business loans and deposits. Although the net interest margin narrowed compared to the
corresponding quarter of 2005, it widened between the second and third quarter of 2006. The
improvement in the spread on deposits cancelled out the deterioration of credit product spreads
caused by competition.

Trading revenues, recorded in both net interest income and other income, decreased by $4Q million
from the third quarter of 2005 to the third quarter of 2006. The decline was more than offset by gains
on investment account securities. These gains amounted to $60 million in the third quarter of 2006,
with $13 million before tax coming from the MasterCard IPO, and represented a substantial increase
compared to the $7 million loss in the third quarter of 2005.

Revenues from mutual funds and trust services climbed $10 million from the third quarter of 2005 to
reach $83 million in the third quarter of 2006. Most of the increase stemmed from the growth in
private investment management and mutual funds.

Aside from these items, the increase in other income was attributable to commissions on loans and
bankers’ acceptarices, foreign exchange revenues and other revenues, which together rose $27
million. Securitization revenues, however, were $38 million this quarter, as against $48 million in the
third quarter of 2005.



Financial market fees amounted to $139 million in the third quarter of 2006, compared to $158
million in the year-earlier period, due to the slowdown in secondary market activities and the smaller
number of new issues.

Total revenues in the first nine months of 2006 grew 3% to reach $2,861 million, versus $2,772
million in the corresponding period of 2005. Personal and Commercial net interest income advanced
$47 million, or 4.9%, to $1,013 million in the first nine months of 2006. Compared to the same period
of 2005, trading revenues fell $17 miilion to $246 million, gains on securities rose $43 mitlion to $130
million and revenues from trust services and mutual funds grew $40 miltion to $247 million. Similarly,
other revenues, foreign exchange revenues and lending fees increased $80 million. Securitization
revenues declined $26 million to $117 million and financial market fees decreased $54 million to
$462 million.

Operating Expenses

In the third quarter of 2006, operating expenses were $634 million, up $18 million from the year-
earlier period. Salaries and staff benefits decreased $1 million to $354 million, with the decrease in
variable compensation offsetting the increase in regular salaries and pension plan costs during the
third quarter of 2006. The ratio of salaries and staff benefits to operating expenses fell 2% to 56%.
Technology expenses were up $6 million while professional fees increased $7 million to $40 million.
Changes in these expenses depend on the completion schedule for technological development
projects.

For the first nine months of 2006, operating expenses were up $48 million, to $1,901 million. This
growth was due to professional fees, which were up $12 million, salaries and staff benefits, which
rose $12 million, and technology expenses, which increased $14 million.

Income Taxes

Income taxes for the third quarter of 2006 totalled $58 million, representing an effective tax rate of
20.5%, compared to $46 million and an effective tax rate of 17.8% for the year-earlier period. The tax
rate for the third quarter of 2006 was affected by the receipt of tax-exempt dividends, while in the
third quarter of 2005 the tax rate was reduced by a transaction on the financial markets. For the first
nine months of 2006, income taxes amounted to $233 million, for an effective tax rate of 25.7%, as
against $219 million and an effective tax rate of 24.7% for the corresponding period of 2005.

Results by Segment

Personal and Commercial

Net income for the Personal and Commercial segment totalled $130 million for the third quarter of
20086, up 12% from the $116 million in net income earned in the corresponding quarter of 2005. Total
revenues for the segment climbed 7% to $559 million. At Personal Banking, total revenues rose $22
million, or 6%, owing chiefly to growth of $2.8 billion in average asset volumes, attributable mainly to
consumer loans, but also to residential mortgages and credit card advances. The increase in
revenues stemming from higher loan volumes was partly offset by a narrowing of the spread on
these products. However, the decrease in the spread on credit products was fully offset by the
improvement in the spread on transaction deposits that resulted from the rise in interest rates.
Insurance revenueas jumped 15%, at an annualized rate. Total revenues for Commercial Banking
were up $12 million, or 7%, due to the increase in net interest income attributable to higher volumes
of loans and acceptances and growth in foreign exchange revenues. Although the spread on
Commercial Banking credit products in the third quarter of 2006 was slightly narrower than in the
third quarter of 2005, it was relatively steady compared to the second quarter of 2006. The spread
on deposits cancelled out the decrease in the spread on credit products, at an annualized rate.




Operating expenses for the Personal and Commercial segment were $339 million for the third
quarter of 2006, as against $324 million for the year-earlier period, for an increase of 5%, which is
lower than the growth in total revenues. As a result, the efficiency ratio dectined to 60.6% for the
third quarter of 2006 from 61.7% for the same quarter of 2005. The segment’s provision for credit
losses was decreased by $2 million to $24 million due to a higher recovery rate for Commercial
Banking.

For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, the Personal and Commercial segment posted net income of
$355 million, a 7% increase over the $333 million recorded for the same period of 2005. Total
revenues for the segment rose 6% to $1,608 million on growth of $62 million or 6% at Personal
Banking and $26 million or 5% at Commercial Banking. The efficiency ratio moved down to 61.3% in
the first nine months of 2006 from 61.9% for the same period a year earlier.

Wealth Management

Net income for the Wealth Management segment totalled $34 million for the third quarter of 2008,
compared to $29 million for the corresponding quarter of 2005, for an increase of 17%. The
segment’s total revenues advanced 3% to $204 million for the third quarter of 2006. A slowdown of
activities on secondary markets affecting revenues for Individual Investor Services at National Bank
Financial was offset by strong growth in trust and mutual fund activities. Operating expenses were
up $2 million, or 1%, to $152 million this quarter. The efficiency ratio dropped from 75.4% in the third
quarter of 2005 to 74.5% this quarter.

For the first nine months of fiscal 2008, net income for the Wealth Management segment amounted
to $114 million versus $85 million for the same period in 2005, for an increase of 34%. Total
revenues for the segment rose 8% to $648 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2006. Operating
expenses edged up barely $11 million or 2% to $472 million.

Financial Markets

For the quarter ended July 31, 2006, the Financial Markets segment posted net income of $60
million, up $6 million or 11% from the year-earlier period. Total segment revenues rose $15 million to
$238 million. Higher gains on securities were partly offset by lower trading revenues. The reduction
in new issues of securities was evident in the $9 million drop in financial market fees, while revenues
from corporate banking services rose $9 million, mainly because of an increase in the value of credit
derivatives. Operating expenses for the quarter were $143 million, up $3 million from the year-earlier
period. This modest increase was due to a reduction in variable compensation. The provision for
credit losses for the quarter stood at $1 million, compared to nil in the corresponding quarter of 2005.
For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, the segment’s net income totalled $208 million, up $16
million, or 8%, from the year-earlier period.

Financial Market Revenues

(taxable equivalent basis (V) Q3 Q3
(millions of dollars, 2006 2005
Trading revenues
Equity 56 86
Interest rate 11 11
Commodity and foreign exchange 1 10
68 107
Financial market fees 57 66
Gains on securities 43 -
Banking services 34 25
Other 36 25

Total 238 223




(1) Taxable equivalent basis is a calculation method that consists in grossing up certain tax-exempt
income by the amount of income tax that otherwise would have been payable. The use of the
taxable equivalent basis is not in accordance with GAAP. Securities regulators require that
companies caution readers that measures adjusted on a basis other than GAAP do not have
standardized meanings under GAAP and may not be comparable to similar measures used by other
companies. Please refer to Note 12 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the
impact of the taxable equivalent adjustment to segment results.

Other

The “Other” heading of segment results recorded a loss of $4 million for the third quarter of 2006,
compared to net income of $8 million for the same period a year earlier. The pre-tax gain of $13
million retated to the MasterCard |PO partly offset the impact of lower securitization revenues and
net interest incorne. For the first nine months of fiscal 2006, the “Other” heading recorded a loss of
$26 million, as against a gain of $38 million for the corresponding period of 2005, when the Bank
recorded a $37 nillion pre-tax gain on the disposal of investments and reversed $17 million of the
general aliowance for credit risk.

Cash Flows

Due to the nature of the Bank’s business, most of its revenues and expenses are cash items.
Moreover, significant cash flow movement can be observed in certain activities, such as trading
activities, and could impact several assets and liabilities such as trading account securities,
securities sold short or securities sold under repurchase agreements.

For the third quarter of 2006, cash and cash equivalents declined $0.4 billion compared to a
decrease of $0.9 billion for the third quarter of 2005. As at July 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents
totalled $9.2 billicn versus $8.0 billion the previous year.

Operating activities generated cash inflows of $1.2 billion for the third quarter of 2006, mainly
because of the decrease in trading account securities. For the corresponding quarter of 2005,
operating activities required cash of $1.6 billion because of the increase of $3.4 billion for trading
account securities, partly offset by $1.86 billion in inflows from other items.

Financing activities in the third quarter of 2006 required cash of $2.3 billion, mostly in purchased
funds, owing chiefly to lower deposits. For the third quarter of 2005, the $1.7 billion increase in
obligations related to securities sold short and the $7.6 billion rise in securities sold under
repurchase agreements accounted for $8.2 billion in cash inflows from financing activities.

Finally, investing activities generated cash of $0.7 billion in the third quarter of 2006. In the
corresponding quarter of 2005, investing activities required cash of $7.5 billion due to the $2.3 billion
increase in loans, the $3.7 billion rise in deposits with financial institutions pledged as collateral and
the $1.4 billion in securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements.

Risk Management

Credit Risk

In the third quarter of 2006, the Bank recorded specific provisions for credit losses of $16 million, an
increase of $1 million over the third quarter of 2005. As at July 31, 2006, gross impaired loans stood
at $214 million compared to $260 million at the end of fiscal 2005. This decline was primarily due to
the successful recovery of impaired business loans. The ratio of gross impaired loans to total
adjusted capital and allowances was only 5.6%. As at July 31, 2006, allowances for credit losses
exceeded gross impaired [oans by $210 million versus $191 million as at October 31, 2005.




Market Risk — Trading Activities

The Value-at-Risk (VaR) simulation model is one of the main tools used to manage market risk in
trading activities. VaR is the maximum value of potential daily losses, measured at a 99%
confidence level, which means that actual losses are likely to exceed VaR only one day out of 100.
The computerized VaR calculation model is based on two years of historical data. Market risk
management is discussed in more detail on page 61 of the 2005 Annual Report. The table below,
entitled “Trading Activities,” illustrates the allocation of market risk by type of risk: interest rate,

foreign exchange, equity price and commodity.

Trading Activities'"
(millions of dollars)

Global VaR by risk

For the quarter ended

For the quarter ended

*including securitized assets

category July 31, 2006 April 30, 2006
Period High Average Low Period . High Average Low
end end
Interest rate (3.3) (7.6) (4.2) (24) (7.1) (8.2) (5.8) (3.6)
Foreign exchange (1.6) (1.9) (1.3) (0.8) (0.9) (2.2) (1.5) (0.6)
Equity (3.8) (4.2) (3.4) (2.3) (3.7) (6.7) (49) (3.7
Commodity (1.0) (1.6) (1.1)  (0.7) (1.4) (1.4) 0.9y (0.7)
Correlation effect? 4.8 7.3 45 23 6.5 9.5 6.0 3.2
Global VaR (4.9) (8.0) (5.5) (3.9) (6.6) {9.0) (7)) (549
Y Amounts are presented on a pre-tax basis and represent one-day VaR.
@ The correlation effect is the result of the diversification of types of risk.
Balance Sheet
As at July 31, 2006, the Bank had assets of $108.6 billion, up $1.0 billion versus $107.6 billion at the
end of fiscal 2005. Loans and acceptances were up $1.6 billion. In addition, cash, deposits with
financial institutions, securities and securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements
increased $0.3 billion. The table below presents the main portfolios.
Average monthly volumes July October July
(millions of dollars) 2006 2005 2005
Loans and acceptances*
Residential mortgages 21,313 20,728 20,419
Consumer loans 9,302 8,283 7,832
Credit card receivables 1,741 1,707 1,680
SME loans 15,210 14,182 14,858
Corporate loans 3614 3.216 2,892
51,180 48,116 47.681
Deposits
Personal (balance) 29,178 26,385 25,476
Off-balance sheet personal savings (balance) 67,580 63,262 63,776
Business 12,288 11,103 11,250




Residential mortgage loans rose steadily during the third quarter of 2006, reaching $21.3 billion as
against $20.4 billion in the year-earlier period. Consumer loans climbed 19% to $9.3 billion, primarily
driven by secured lines of credit. Higher consumer spending also accounted for the increase in credit
card receivables, which were up 3.6% over the previous year to total $1.7 billion as at July 31, 2006.
Business loans continued to grow, with SME loans up 2.4% year over year, to $15.2 billion as at July
31, 2006. Average volumes of corporate loans, for their part, rose $700 million to $3.6 billion.

Personal deposits stood at $29.2 billion as at July 31, 2006, up $3.7 billion or 14.5% from the
corresponding quarter of 2005, chiefly owing to deposits distributed by Altamira. Off-balance sheet
personal savings administered by the Bank as at July 31, 2006 totalled $67.6 billion, an increase of
$3.8 billion or 6.0% in a year. The rise was primarily attributable to savings administered by
brokerage subsidiaries, with the remainder divided between private investment management and
mutual funds.

Accounting Policies and Estimates

The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The reader is referred to Note 1 and Note 2a to
the 2005 annual consolidated financial statements for more information on the significant accounting
policies used to prepare the financial statements.

There have not been any changes to the Bank’s significant accounting policies affecting the first nine
months ended July 31, 2006.

Details of significant future changes in accounting standards are presented in Note 2 to the interim
consolidated financial statements.

The key assumptions and bases for estimates made by Management in accordance with GAAP and
their impact on amounts presented in the interim consolidated financial statements and notes remain
essentially unchanged from those described in the 2005 Annual Report.

Capital

Tier 1 and total capital ratios, according to the rules of the Bank for International Settlements, stood
at 9.4% and 12.4%, respectively, as at July 31, 2006 versus 9.6% and 12.8% as at October 31,
2005, including the $500 million debenture issued on November 2, 2005. During the third quarter of
2008, the Bank issued $225 million in innovative capital instruments. During the first nine months of
fiscal 2006, the Bank repurchased 4.5 million common shares for a total of $275 million as part of its
normal course issuer bids.

Risk-weighted assets rose $2.4 billion or 5.2% since the start of the fiscal year mainly because of
higher loan volumes.

Dividends

At its meeting on August 31, 2006, the Board of Directors declared regular dividends on the various
classes and series of preferred shares as well as a 50 cent dividend per common share, payable on
November 1, 2006 to shareholders of record on September 28, 2006.




Additional Financial Information

(unaudsted)
{milians of dollars except per shara amounts;

Total revenues
Net income

Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

Dividends per common share

Return on common shareholders' equity

Total assets

{mpaired loans,net

Per common share
Book value
Stock trading range
High
Low

2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
Q3 @ (o] 4 Q3 Q2 Qi 4 Total Total
5933 $949 $979 $631 $829 $900 $983 se% $3.703 $3,545
20 214 17 207 207 202 239 192 855 725
132 1.29 128 1.22 1.20 147 1.39 1.1 498 410
1.30 1.26 126 1.20 118 115 137 1,08 4.90 4.05
0.50 048 0.48 0.4 0.4 042 042 0.38 1.72 142
202% 204 % 199 % 194 % 196 % 199 % 236 % 197 % 207 % 188 %
$108,645 $111,183 §105276  $107,508  $110.593 399,917 $01,703  $88,497
1
9 111 113 17 114 19 134 160
26.57 577 2572 25,39 2470 24.19 297 287
62.69 65.60 63.90 61.47 58.21 55.24 49.75 4878
56.14 61.35 5835 56,87 5160 4872 46.39 4231




Highlights
(unaudited)

Operating results

{millions of dollars)

Total revenues

Net income

Return on common sharehoiders’ equity

Per common share
Earnings - basic
Earnings - diluted
Dividends declared
Book value
Stock trading range

High

Low

Close

Financial position
(millions of dollars)

Total assets
Loans and acceptances
Deposits
Subordinated debentures and shareholders' equity
Capital ratios - BIS
Tier 1
Total
impaired loans, net of specific and general allowances
as a % of loans and acceptances
Assets under administration/maragement
Total personal savings
Interest coverage
Asset coverage

Other information

Number of employees

Number of branches in Canada
Number of banking machines

Quarter ended July 31

Nine months ended July 31

% %
2006 2005 Change 2008 2005 Change
$933 $889 5 $2,861 $2,772 3
220 207 ) 651 648 .
20.2 % 18.6 % 20.2 %. 211 %
$1.32 $1.20 10 $3.89 $3.76 3
$1.30 $1.18 10 $3.83 $3.70 4
0.50 0.44 14 1.46 1.28 14
26.57 24.70 8
62.69 58.21 65.60 58.21
56.14 51.60 56.14 46.39
58.55 57.30 58.55 57.30
July 31 QOctober 31
2006 2005
$108,645 107,598 $ 1
51,943 50,360 3
68,094 61,977 10
6,301 5,699 1
94 % 96 %
124 % 12.8" 9%
(210) (191)
{0.4) % (0.4) %
227,699 221,132
86,758 89,647
14.60 12.71
13.85 4.73
17,183 16 890 2
453 457 (N
800 788 2

™ Taking into account the issuance of $500 million of subordinated debentures on November 2, 2005.



